
  
  

  

WWaasshhiinnggttoonn  CCoouunnttyy  
BBooaarrdd  ooff  CCoommmmiissssiioonneerrss  MMeeeettiinngg  

AApprriill  77,,  22002255  
  
  
  
  

  



April 4, 2025  3:10:55 PM 

WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

MONDAY, APRIL 7, 2025 
COMMISSIONERS ROOM 

116 ADAMS ST. 
 PLYMOUTH, NC 

 
  
  
 6:00 PM Call to Order—Chair Phelps 
 6:01 PM Invocation / Pledge   
   Additions / Deletions 
    
Item 1 6:05 PM Consent Agenda 

a) Regular Session Minutes:  March 3, 2025 & Special Called Meeting Minutes: March 21, 
2025 

b) Tax Refunds & Releases and Insolvent Accounts 
c) Proclamation 2025 – 004 Two Lights for Tomorrow 
d) Interlocal Agreement with Chowan & Gates for Feasibility Study Agreement for  

Regional Jail Facility 
e) Audit Contract 
f) Revised Pay Tables  

 
Item 2 6:10 PM Public Forum (3–5-minute limit per speaker)  
 
Item 3 6:20 PM Board of Equalization & Review, Ms. Sherri Wilkins, Tax Administrator 
 
Item 4 6:30 PM Public Hearing—Vacant Schools/Department Relocation, Mr. Kelly Chesson, ED 

Director 
   
Item 5 6:40 PM  Public Hearing—Zoning Ordinance--Corridor Commercial District Amendment, 

Mr. Allen Pittman, Planning/Safety 
 
Item 6 6:50 PM Public Hearing—Request for Change in Zoning Classification, Mr. Allen Pittman, 

Planning/Safety 
 
Item 7 7:00 PM Boards & Committees, Ms. Julie J. Bennett, Clerk to the Board 
 
Item 8 7:10 PM Finance Officer’s Report, Budget Amendments/Budget Transfers: Ms. Missy 

Dixon, Finance Officer 
 
Item 9 7:20 PM Other Items by Chair, Commissioners, CM/CA, Finance Officer, or Clerk 

Item 10 7:30 PM Closed Session has been scheduled according to NCGS§143-318.11(a)(3)  
(attorney-client privilege and NCGS §143-318.11(a)(6) (personnel) 

 
Adjourn 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
       ITEM NO:  1 
 
       DATE:  April 7, 2025 
 
ITEM:  Consent Agenda      
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 

a) Regular Session Minutes: March 3, 2025 & Special Called Meeting Minutes:  March   
21, 2025  

 See attached at the very end of this package. 
 

b) Tax Refunds & Releases & Insolvent Account 
 See attached.  
 

c) Proclamation 2025 – 004 Two Lights for Tomorrow 
 See attached. 

 
d) Interlocal Agreement with Chowan & Gates for Feasibility Study Agreement for  

 Regional Jail Facility 
 See attached. 
 

e) Audit Contract 
 See attached. 
 

f) Revised Pay Tables-- Attached are the revised pay-tables including corrections made to  
the starting salary values for the positions compared to the starting amounts previously 
reported to the board at the last meeting.  The corrections were required after 
discovering that the values previously reported were from the wrong column of data 
directly beside the slightly higher starting values column intended to be reported.  The 
actual pay change percentages and overall estimated costs of the changes are still 
accurate as previously reported. 

 
 The table in the attachment (which did not hold its formatting when I tried to paste it in 

this email) summarizes the corrections between the previously reported starting rate and 
corrected rate. 

 
 









Washington County Proclamation 2025-004 Page 1 of 2  

 
 

 
 
 
 

PROCLAMATION 2025-004 

 
WHEREAS, Washington County recognizes the importance of honoring and commemorating the 250th 

anniversary of the founding of our nation and reminding our citizens of the vital significance and relevance of 
our founding principles and ideals that created a unique national identity worth fighting for; and 

 
WHEREAS, the events of 1775 that began the revolution the year before independence was declared 

are significant moments that signaled the creation of a national identity and unity of purpose that transcended 
traditional geographic, cultural, and societal divides; and 

 
WHEREAS, individuals and communities across all the colonies came together to support their fellow 

countrymen; and 
 
WHEREAS, on the evening of April 18, 1775, with impending hostile action from the British army in 

Boston, Massachusetts, Paul Revere and William Dawes along with other alarm riders undertook a perilous 
ride to alert everyone in the countryside of the coming danger; and 

 
WHEREAS, preceding their departure from Boston, a prearranged signal was set in the Old North 

Church steeple to ensure that the message got out and did not solely rely on just one or two alarm riders; and 
 
WHEREAS, the two lanterns that were the signal were immortalized in Henry Wadsworth 

Longfellow’s poem Paul Revere’s Ride as “One if by land, and two if by sea” and have become an enduring 
symbol of American vigilance, perseverance, preparedness in the face of adversity; and 
 

WHEREAS, those alarm riders and the citizens that answered the call to arms to serve and defend their 
fellow countrymen that night and the following day at the Battles of Lexington and Concord exemplify the 
spirit of community and shared responsibility that has defined our nation since its inception; and 

 
WHEREAS, we are reminded, 250 years later, that the call for unity and the call to serve each other is 

no less relevant today than it was then; and 
 
WHEREAS, a national initiative has been proposed through collaboration from multiple states that two 

lights be displayed in public spaces across the country for all to see marking that significant anniversary in 
April 2025 and the beginning of the 250th anniversary commemorations leading up to the Declaration of 
Independence on July 4, 2026; and 

 
WHEREAS, state commissions, state governments, federal agencies, and community, heritage, and 

historical organizations across the country have eagerly endorsed the initiative and pledge to support and 
participate, and have encouraged others to do the same; and 

 
 
 



Washington County Proclamation 2025-004 Page 2 of 2  

WHEREAS, some participating entities have also pledged to encourage a day of community service on 
April 19, 2025 as a way to encourage understanding about the true meaning of these historical 
commemorations knowing that these events are not just marking history for history’s sake, but rather 
encouraging reflection on the idea that all these historic events were endeavoring toward one common goal: the 
chance for a better tomorrow, together; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, the Washington County Board of Commissioners hereby endorse the Two 

Lights For Tomorrow national initiative and call on all citizens to unite in remembrance of our shared history, 
honoring the sacrifices made by those who fought for our independence and reminding ourselves of the values 
we hold dear today. 

 
FURTHERMORE, the Washington County Board of Commissioners encourage all government 

buildings, community centers, public spaces, and all citizens to take part in this symbolic display by 
prominently displaying two lights for all to see beginning the night of  April 14th, 2025 - April 18th, 2025 and 
reflect on how those lights shining out in the darkness during this vigil symbolically illustrate our ongoing 
journey as a nation. 

 
ADOPTED this 7th day of April, 2025. 
 

 
                                                                                 
                Carol V. Phelps, Chair 
        Washington County Board of Commissioners 
 
 

ATTEST:   
Julie J. Bennett, MMC, NCMCC 
Clerk to the Board 

 



Washington County Interlocal Agreement Page 1 of 2 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 

 
CHOWAN COUNTY, GATES COUNTY AND WASHINGTON COUNTY 

FEASIBILITY STUDY AGREEMENT FOR  
REGIONAL JAIL FACILITY 

 
 

 WHEREAS, Chowan, Gates and Washington Counties wish to enter into a study to 
determine the feasibility of creating a regional jail facility to serve the three counties; and 
 
 WHEREAS, a feasibility study is a Needs Assessment Study and will assist the three 
Counties in determining the possibility for the creation of a regional jail; and 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, as an exercise in regional collaboration and efficient use of local 
resources, the Boards of Commissioners of Chowan County, Gates County and Washington 
County do hereby agree to a joint study to evaluate the opportunity to build a regional 
facility. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the Board of Commissioners of Chowan County, Gates 
County and Washington County do hereby agree to undertake and fund a share of the costs of 
a study that is formulated based on County population 
 
 FURTHERMORE, the study will include the following services: 
 

• Forecast inmate population and associated space needs through 2045. 
• Identify long term space needs and solutions. 
• Provide conceptual design for option. 
• Provide opinion of probable cost. 
• Work with an Advisory Stakeholders Group. 
• Present the findings to the Board of Commissioners. 
• Provide a written report documenting the study findings, options to address 

needs, and recommendations for next steps. 
 

 
Each party to this Agreement shall sign a signature page to constitute valid execution of 
this Agreement. 
 

 
 
 
 



Washington County Interlocal Agreement Page 2 of 2 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
WASHINGTON COUNTY, NC 
 
Adopted this 7th day of April, 2025. 
 
 

          _________________________________ 
            Carol V. Phelps, Chair 

 
Attest: 
 
________________________________ 
      Julie J. Bennett, MMC, NCMCC 
            Clerk to the Board 



CONTRACT TO AUDIT ACCOUNTS LGC-205 Rev. /2  

The 

of 

and 

and 

for 

Primary Government Unit, together with DPCU (if applicable), hereinafter referred to as Governmental Unit(s) 

Auditor Name 

Auditor Address 

Hereinafter referred to as Auditor 

hereby agree as follows: 

Must be within  months of FYE 

The Auditor shall audit all statements and disclosures required by U.S. generally accepted auditing
standards (GAAS) and additional required legal statements and disclosures of all funds and/or divisions of the
Governmental Unit(s). The non-major combining, and individual fund statements and schedules shall 
besubjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and an opinion 
shall be rendered in relation to (as applicable) the governmental activities, the business- type activities, the
aggregate DPCUs, each major governmental and enterprise fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information 
(non-major government and enterprise funds, the internal service fund type, and the fiduciary fund types).

Page 1

Governing Board 

Primary Government Unit

Discretely Presented Component Unit (DPCU) (if applicable) 

Fiscal Year Ending  

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

WASHINGTON COUNTY

WASHINGTON COUNTY TRAVEL & TOURISM AUTHORITY

THOMPSON, PRICE, SCOTT, ADAMS & CO, P.A.

1626 S MADISON STREET, WHITEVILLE, NC 28472

06/30/25 12/31/25



CONTRACT TO AUDIT ACCOUNTS LGC-205 Rev. /20  

If an entity is determined to be a component of another government as defined by the group audit
standards, the entity’s auditor shall make a good faith effort to comply in a timely manner with the requests of
the group auditor in accordance with AU-6 §600.41 - §600.42.

This contract contemplates an unmodified opinion being rendered. If during the process of conducting
the audit, the Auditor determines that it will not be possible to render an unmodified opinion on the financial
statements of the unit, the Auditor shall contact the LGC taff to discuss the circumstances leading to that
conclusion as soon as is practical and before the final report is issued. The audit shall include such tests of the
accounting records and such other auditing procedures as are considered by the Auditor to be necessary in the
circumstances. Any limitations or restrictions in scope which would lead to a qualification should be fully
explained in an attachment to this contract.

If this audit engagement is subject to the standards for audit as defined in Government Auditing
Standards, 201  revision, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, then by accepting this
engagement, the Auditor warrants that he/she has met the requirements for a peer review and continuing
education as specified in Government Auditing Standards. The Auditor agrees to provide a copy of the most
recent peer review report to the Governmental Unit(s) and the Secretary of the LGC prior to the execution of an
audit contract. Subsequent submissions of the report are required only upon report expiration or upon auditor’s
receipt of an updated peer review report. If the audit firm received a peer review rating other than pass, the
Auditor shall not contract with the Governmental Unit(s) without first contacting the Secretary of the LGC for a
peer review analysis that may result in additional contractual requirements.

If the audit engagement is not subject to Government A  Standards or if financial statements are not 
prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and fail to include all 
disclosures required by GAAP, the Auditor shall provide an explanation as to why in an attachment to this 
contract or in an amendment. 

It is agreed that time is of the essence in this contract. All audits are to be performed and the report of
audit submitted to LGC aff within  months of fiscal year end. If it becomes necessary to amend th

, an amended contract along with a written
explanation of the  shall be submitted to the Secretary of the LGC for approval.

Page 



CONTRACT TO AUDIT ACCOUNTS LGC-205 Rev. /20

t  agencies or other organizations)
as required under the Federal and State Single Audit Acts. This does not include fees for any pre-issuance
reviews that may be required by the NC Association of CPAs (NCACPA) Peer Review Committee or NC State
Board of CPA Examiners (see Item 13).

If the Governmental Unit(s) has/have outstanding revenue bonds, the Auditor shall submit to LGC taff,
either in the notes to the audited financial statements or as a separate report, a calculation demonstrating
compliance with the revenue bond rate covenant. Additionally, the Auditor shall submit to LGC taff
simultaneously with the Governmental Unit’s (Units’) audited financial statements any other bond compliance
statements or additional reports required by the authorizing bond documents, unless otherwise specified in the
bond documents.

After completing the audit, the Auditor shall submit to the Governing Board a written report of audit. This
report shall include, but not be limited to, the following information: (a) Management’s Discussion and Analysis,
(b) the financial statements and notes of the Governmental Unit(s) and all of its component units prepared in
accordance with GAAP, (c) supplementary information requested by the Governmental Unit(s) or required for full
disclosure under the law, and (d) the Auditor’s opinion on the material presented. The Auditor shall furnish the
required number of copies of the report of audit to the Governing Board upon completion.

If the audit firm is required by the NC State Board, the NCACPA Peer Review Committee, or the
Secretary of the LGC to have a pre-issuance review of its audit work, there shall be a statement in the
engagement letter indicating the pre-issuance review requirement. There also shall be a statement that the
Governmental Unit(s) shall not be billed for the pre-issuance review. The pre-issuance review shall be performed
prior to the completed audit being submitted to LGC Staff. The pre-issuance review report shall accompany the
audit report upon submission to LGC Staff



CONTRACT TO AUDIT ACCOUNTS LGC-205 Rev. /20

requesting the return of records.
Page 4 

If an approved contract needs to be modified or amended for any reason, the change shall be made in
writing pre-audited if the change includes a change in audit fee (pre-audit requirement does not apply to
ospitals). This amended contract shall be completed in full, including a written explanation of the change,

signed and dated by all original parties to the contract. It shall then be submitted to the Secretary of the LGC for
approval. No change to the audit contract shall be effective unless approved by the Secretary of the LGC.

A copy of the engagement letter, issued by the Auditor and signed by both the Auditor and the
Governmental Unit(s), shall be attached to this contract, and except for fees, work, and terms not related to audit
services, shall be incorporated by reference as if fully set forth herein as part of this contract. In case of conflict
between the terms of the engagement letter and the terms of this contract, the terms of this contract shall take
precedence. Engagement letter terms that conflict with the contract are deemed to be void unless the conflicting
terms of this contract are specifically deleted in Item  of this contract. Engagement letters containing
indemnification clauses shall not be accepted by LGC Staff.

Special provisions should be limited. Please list any special provisions in an attachment.

A separate contract should not be made for each division to be audited or report to be submitted. If a
DPCU is subject to the audit requirements detailed in the Local Government Budget and Fiscal Control Act and
a separate audit report is issued, a separate audit contract is required. If a separate report is not to be issued
and the DPCU is included in the primary government audit, the DPCU shall be named along with the p
government on this audit contract. DPCU Board approval date, signatures from the DPCU Board chairman and
finance officer also shall be included on this contract.

The contract shall be executed, pre-audited (pre-audit requirement does not apply to hospitals), and
physically signed by all parties including Governmental Unit(s) and the Auditor, then submitted in PDF format to
the Secretary of the LGC.

The contract is not valid until it is approved by the Secretary of the LGC. The staff of the LGC shall notify
the Governmental Unit and Auditor of contract approval by email. The audit should not be started before the
contract is approved.

Retention of Client Records: Auditors are subject to the NC State Board of CPA Examiners’ Retention of
Client Records Rule 21 NCAC 08N .0305 as it relates to the provision of audit and other attest services, as well
as non-attest services. Clients and former clients should be familiar with the requirements of this rule prior to



CONTRACT TO AUDIT ACCOUNTS LGC-205 Rev. /20  

All non-attest service(s) being performed by the Auditor that are necessary to perform the audit must be 
identified and included in this contract. The Governmental Unit shall designate an individual with the suitable 
skills, knowledge, and/or experience (SKE) necessary to oversee the services and accept responsibility for 
the results of the services performed. If the Auditor is able to identify an individual with the appropriate SKE, 
s/he must document and include in the audit workpapers how he/she reached that conclusion. If the Auditor 
determines that an individual with the appropriate SKE cannot be identified, the Auditor cannot perform both 
the non-attest service(s) and the audit. See "Fees for Audit Services" page of this contract to disclose the 
person identified as having the appropriate SKE for the Governmental Unit. 

Page 5 

E-Verify. Auditor shall comply with the requirements of NCGS Chapter 64 Article 2. Further, if Auditor
utilizes any subcontractor(s), Auditor shall require such subcontractor(s) to comply with the requirements of
NCGS Chapter 64, Article 2.

or all non-attest services,
the Auditor shall adhere to the independence rules of the AICPA Professional Code of Conduct and

 (as applicable). inancial statement
shall be deemed a “significant threat” requiring the Auditor to apply safeguards sufficient to reduce the 

threat to an acceptable level. If the Auditor cannot reduce the threats to an acceptable level, the Auditor 
cannot complete the audit. If the Auditor is able to reduce the threats to an acceptable level, the
documentation of this determination, including the safeguards applied, must be included in the audit
workpapers.



CONTRACT TO AUDIT ACCOUNTS LGC-205 Rev. /20  

The process for submitting contracts, audit reports and invoices is subject to change. Auditors
and units should use the submission process and instructions in effect at the time of submission. Refer
to the N.C. Department of State Treasurer website at 

Page  



CONTRACT TO AUDIT ACCOUNTS LGC-205 Rev. /20

FEES FOR AUDIT SERVICES 

1. For all non-attest services, the Auditor shall adhere to the independence rules of the AICPA Professional
Code of Conduct (as applicable) and Government Auditing Standards,2018 Revision. Refer to Item 2  of
this contract for specific requirements. The following information must be provided by the Auditor; contracts
presented to the LGC without his information will be not be approved.
Financial statements were prepared by: Auditor Governmental Unit Third Party 

If applicable: Individual at Governmental Unit designated to have the suitable skills, knowledge, and/or 
experience (SKE) necessary to oversee the  non-attest  services  and  accept  responsibility  for  the 
results of these services:      
 Name:   Title :    Email Address: 

Fees may not be included in this contract for work performed on Annual Financial Information Reports
(AFIRs), Form 990s, or other services not associated with audit fees and costs. Such fees may be included in the
engagement letter but may not be included in this contract or in any invoices requiring approval of the LGC. See
Items 8  for details on other allowable and excluded fees.

Prior to submission of the completed audited financial report  applicable compliance reports
  (if required) the Auditor may submit invoices for

approval for services rendered , not to exceed 75% of the billings
 All invoices for services rendered

in an audit engagement as defined in 20 NCAC .0503 shall be submitted to the Commission for approval before
any payment is made. Payment before approval is a violation of law. (This  not applicable to contracts

 

Audit Fee  $ 
Fee per Major Program $ 

inancial Statement $ 
All Other Non-Attest Services $ 

 

Audit Fee  $ 
Fee per Major Program $ 

Financial Statement  $ 

All Other Non-Attest Services $ 

Page  

  

 $ 

 $ 

✔

MISSY DIXON FINANCE DIRECTOR/WASHING mdixon@washconc.org

WASHINGTON COUNTY

54,000

4,000

58,000

WASHINGTON COUNTY TRAVEL & TOURISM AUTHORITY

3500

3,500



LGC-205 CONTRACT TO AUDIT ACCOUNTS Rev.

Page

SIGNATURE PAGE

AUDIT FIRM

Audit Firm

Authorized Firm Representative (typed or printed) Signature

Date Email Address

GOVERNMENTAL UNIT

Governmental Unit

Date Governing Board Approved Audit Contract

Mayor/Chairperson (typed or printed) Signature

Date Email Address

Chair of Audit Committee (typed or printed, or “NA”) Signature

Date Email Address

GOVERNMENTAL UNIT – PRE-AUDIT CERTIFICAT

Required by G.S. 159-28(a1) or G.S. 115C-441(a1)

This instrument has been pre-audited in the manner required by The Local Government Budget and Fiscal 
Control Act or by the School Budget and Fiscal Control Act.

Primary Governmental Unit Finance Officer (typed or printed) Signature

Date of Pre-Audit Certificate Email Address

THOMPSON, PRICE, SCOTT, ADAMS & CO, P.A.

ALAN W. THOMPSON

04/04/25 alanthompson@tpsacpas.com

WASHINGTON COUNTY

58,000

MISSY DIXON

mdixon@washconc.org

brandy
Sign Here

brandy
Accepted

brandy
Accepted

brandy
Accepted

brandy
Accepted

brandy
Accepted

brandy
Sign Here

brandy
Accepted



LGC-205 CONTRACT TO AUDIT ACCOUNTS Rev. /20

Page

SIGNATURE PAGE – DPCU
(complete only if applicable)

DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNIT

DPCU

Date DPCU Governing Board Approved Audit Contract

Chairperson (typed or printed) Signature

Date Email Address

Chair of Audit Committee (typed or printed, or “NA”) Signature

Date Email Address

DPCU – PRE-AUDIT CERTIFICATE

Required by G.S. 159-28(a1) or G.S. 115C-441(a1

This instrument has been pre-audited in the manner required by The Local Government Budget and Fiscal 
Control Act or by the School Budget and Fiscal Control Act.

 Finance Officer (typed or printed) Signature

Date of Pre-Audit Certificate Email Address

S

WASHINGTON COUNTY TRAVEL & TOURISM AUTHORITY

3,500

Missy Dixon

mdixon@washconc.org

PRINT

brandy
Sign Here

brandy
Accepted

brandy
Accepted

brandy
Accepted

brandy
Accepted

brandy
Accepted

brandy
Sign Here

brandy
Accepted



Members 
American Institute of CPAs - N.C. Association of CPAs – AICPA’s Private Companies Practice Section 

 

Thompson, Price, Scott, Adams & Co, P.A. 
P.O. Box 398 

1626 S Madison Street 
Whiteville, NC  28472 

Telephone (910) 642-2109 
Fax (910) 642-5958 

Alan W. Thompson, CPA 
R. Bryon Scott, CPA 

Gregory S. Adams, CPA 

 
April 4, 2025 
 
Washington County 
PO Box 1007 
Plymouth, North Carolina 27962 
 
To Management and Those Charged With Governance: 
 
We are pleased to confirm our understanding of the services we are to provide Washington County for the year 
ended June 30, 2025.   
 
Audit Scope and Objectives 
 
We will audit the financial statements of the governmental activities, business-type activities, the aggregate 
discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information, including the 
disclosures, which collectively comprise the basic financial statements, of Washington County as of and for the year 
ended June 30, 2025.  Accounting standards generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) provide for 
certain required supplementary information (RSI), such as management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A), to 
supplement Washington County’s basic financial statements.  Such information, although not a part of the basic 
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards board who considers it to be an 
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, 
economic, or historical context.  As part of our engagement, we will apply certain limited procedures to Washington 
County’s RSI in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAS).  
These limited procedures will consist of inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the 
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic 
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.  We will 
not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us 
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.  The following RSI is required by GAAP 
and will be subjected to certain limited procedures, but will not be audited: 
 

1. Management’s discussion and analysis. 
2. Law Enforcement Officers’ Special Separation Allowance Schedule of Total Pension Liability (Asset) and 

Schedule of Total Pension Liability (Asset) as a Percentage of Covered-Employee Payroll 
3. Schedule of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability (Asset) and Schedule of County 

Contributions – LGERS 
4. Schedule of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability (Asset) and Schedule of County 

Contributions – ROD 
5. Schedule of Proportionate Share of the County’s Net OPEB Liability and Contributions – Retiree Health 

Benefit Fund 
 
We have also been engaged to report on supplementary information other than RSI that accompanies Washington 
County’s financial statements.  We will subject the following supplementary information to the auditing procedures 
applied in our audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and 
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial 
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with GAAS, and 



we will provide an opinion on it in relation to the financial statements as a whole in a report combined with our 
auditors’ report on the financial statements: 
     

1. Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards. 
2. Combining and Individual Fund Financial Statements, Budgetary Schedules, and Other Schedules 

 
Our responsibility for other information included in documents containing the entity’s audited financial statements 
and auditors’ report does not extend beyond the financial information identified in the report.  We have no 
responsibility for determining whether such other information contained in these documents is properly stated. 
 
The objectives of our audit are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a shole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and issue an auditors’ report that includes our 
opinions about whether your financial statements are fairly presented, in all material respects, in conformity with 
GAAP, and report on the fairness of the supplementary information referred to in the second paragraph when 
considered in relation to the financial statements as a whole.  Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but 
is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and 
Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.  Misstatements, including 
omissions, can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, 
individually, or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment of a reasonable user made based on the 
financial statements.  The objective also includes reporting on-  
 

 Internal control over financial reporting and compliance with the provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, 
and award agreements, noncompliance with which could have a material effect on the financial statements 
in accordance with Government Auditing Standards. 

 
 Internal control over compliance related to major programs and an opinion (or disclaimer of opinion) on 

compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of federal awards that could have 
a direct and material effect on each major program in accordance with the Single Audit Act Amendments of 
1996 and Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, 
Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). 

 
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements and Single Audit 
 
We will conduct our audit will be conducted in accordance with GAAS; the standards for financial audits contained 
in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; the Single Audit Act 
Amendments of 1996; and the provisions of the Uniform Guidance, and will include tests of accounting records, a 
determination of major program(s) in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, and other procedures we consider 
necessary to enable us to express such opinions.  As part of an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government 
Auditing Standards, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.  
 
We will evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by management.  We will also evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and determine whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and 
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.  We will plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether from (1) errors, (2) 
fraudulent financial reporting, (3) misappropriation of assets, or (4) violations of laws or governmental regulations 
that are attributable to the entity or to acts by management or employees acting on behalf of the entity.  Because the 
determination of waste and abuse is subjective, Government Auditing Standards do not expect auditors to perform 
specific procedures to detect waste or abuse in financial audits nor do they expect auditors to provide reasonable 
assurance of detecting waste or abuse. 
 
Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, combined with the inherent limitations of internal control, and 
because we will not perform a detailed examination of all transactions, there is an unavoidable risk that some 
material misstatements or noncompliance may exist and not be detected by us, even though the audit is properly 
planned and performed in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards.  In addition, an audit is not 
designed to detect immaterial misstatements or violations of laws or governmental regulations that do not have a 
direct and material effect on the financial statements or major programs.  However, we will inform the appropriate 
level of management of any material errors, any fraudulent financial reporting, or misappropriation of assets that 
come to our attention.  We will also inform the appropriate level of management of any violations of laws or 
governmental regulations that come to our attention, unless clearly inconsequential, and of any material abuse that 
comes to our attention.  We will include such matters in the reports required for a Single Audit.  Our responsibility 



as auditors is limited to the period covered by our audit and does not extend to any later periods for which we are not 
engaged as auditors. 
 
We will also conclude, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether there are conditions or events, considered in 
the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the government’s ability to continue as a going concern for a 
reasonable period of time. 
 
Our procedures will include tests of documentary evidence supporting the transactions recorded in the accounts and 
may include tests of the physical existence of inventories (if material), and direct confirmation of receivables and 
certain other assets and liabilities by correspondence with selected individuals, funding sources, creditors, and 
financial institutions.  We will request written representations from your attorneys as part of the engagement, and 
they may bill you for responding to this inquiry.  At the conclusion of our audit, we will also require certain written 
representations from you about your responsibilities for the financial statements; schedule of expenditures of federal 
awards; federal award programs; compliance with laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements; and other 
responsibilities required by generally accepted auditing standards. 
 
We may from time to time, and depending on the circumstances, use third-party service providers in serving your 
account.  We may share confidential information about you with these service providers but remain committed to 
maintaining the confidentiality and security of your information.  Accordingly, we maintain internal policies, 
procedures, and safeguards to protect the confidentiality of your personal information.  In addition, we will secure 
confidentiality agreements with all service providers to maintain the confidentiality of your information and we will 
take reasonable precautions to determine that they have appropriate procedures in place to prevent the unauthorized 
release of your confidential information to others.  In the event that we are unable to secure an appropriate 
confidentiality agreement, you will be asked to provide your consent prior to the sharing of your confidential 
information with the third-party service provider.  Furthermore, we will remain responsible for the work provided by 
any such third-party service providers. 
 
Our audit of financial statements does not relieve you of your responsibilities. 
 
Audit Procedures-Internal Controls 
 
We will obtain an understanding of the entity and its environment, including internal control relevant to the audit, 
sufficient to identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to error or 
fraud, and to design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks and obtain evidence that is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinions.  The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentation, or the override of internal control.  Test of controls may be performed to test the effectiveness of 
certain controls that we consider relevant to preventing and detecting errors and fraud that are material to the 
financial statements and to preventing and detecting misstatements resulting from illegal acts and other 
noncompliance matters that have a direct and material effect on the financial statements.  Our tests, if performed, 
will be less in scope than would be necessary to render an opinion on internal control and, accordingly, no opinion 
will be expressed in our report on internal control issued pursuant to Government Auditing Standards. 
 
As required by the Uniform Guidance, we will perform tests of controls over compliance to evaluate the 
effectiveness of the design and operation of controls that we consider relevant to preventing or detecting material 
noncompliance with compliance requirements applicable to each major federal award program.  However, our tests 
will be less in scope than would be necessary to render an opinion on those controls and, accordingly, no opinion 
will be expressed in our report on internal control issued pursuant to the Uniform Guidance. 
 
An audit is not designed to provide assurance on internal control or to identify significant deficiencies or material 
weaknesses.  Accordingly, we will express no such opinion.  However, during the audit, we will communicate to 
management and those charged with governance internal control related matters that are required to be 
communicated under AICPA professional standards, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance.   
 
Audit Procedures-Compliance 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, 
we will perform tests of Washington County’s compliance with provisions of applicable laws, regulations, contracts, 
and agreements, including grant agreements.  However, the objective of those procedures will not be to provide an 
opinion on overall compliance and we will not express such an opinion in our report on compliance issued pursuant 
to Government Auditing Standards. 
 



The Uniform Guidance requires that we also plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the auditee has complied with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of federal awards 
applicable to major programs.  Our procedures will consist of tests of transactions and other applicable procedures 
described in the OMB Compliance Supplement for the types of compliance requirements that could have a direct and 
material effect on each of Washington County’s major programs.  For federal programs that are included in the 
Compliance Supplement, our compliance and internal control procedures will relate to the compliance requirements 
that the Compliance supplement identifies as being subject to audit.  The purpose of these procedures will be to 
express an opinion on Washington County’s compliance with requirements applicable to each of its major programs 
in our report on compliance issued pursuant to the Uniform Guidance. 
 
Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements and Single Audit 
 
Our audit will be conducted on the basis that you acknowledge and understand your responsibility for (1) designing, 
implementing, and maintaining effective internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, including internal 
controls over federal and State awards, and for evaluating and monitoring ongoing activities, to help ensure that 
appropriate goals and objectives are met; (2) following laws and regulations; (3) ensuring that there is reasonable 
assurance that government programs are administered in compliance with compliance requirements; and (4) 
ensuring that management and financial information is reliable and properly reported.  Management is also 
responsible for implementing systems designed to achieve compliance with applicable laws, regulations, contracts, 
and grant agreements.  You are also responsible for the selection and application of accounting principles; for the 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements, schedule of expenditures of federal and State awards, 
and all accompanying information in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; and for 
compliance with applicable laws and regulations (including federal statutes), rules, and the provisions of contracts 
and grant agreements (including award agreements).  Your responsibilities also include identifying significant 
contractor relationships in which the contractor has responsibility for program compliance and for the accuracy and 
completeness of that information. 
 
You are also responsible for making drafts of the schedule of expenditures of federal awards, all financial records, 
and related information available to us and for the accuracy and completeness of that information (including 
information from outside of the general and subsidiary ledgers).  You are also responsible for providing us with (1) 
access to all information of which you are aware that is relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements, such as records, documentation, identification of all related parties and all related-party 
relationships and transactions, and other matters; (2) access to personnel, accounts, books, records, supporting 
documentation, and other information as needed to perform an audit under the Uniform Guidance, (3) additional 
information that we may request for the purpose of the audit, and (4) unrestricted access to persons within the 
government from whom we determine it necessary to obtain audit evidence.  At the conclusion of our audit, we will 
require certain written representations from you about the financial statements; schedule of expenditures of federal 
and State awards; federal or State award programs; compliance with laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 
agreements; and related matters. 
 
Your responsibilities include adjusting the financial statements to correct material misstatements and confirming to 
us in the management representation letter that the effects of any uncorrected misstatements aggregated by us during 
the current engagement and pertaining to the latest period presented are immaterial, both individually and in the 
aggregate, to the financial statements of each opinion unit taken as a whole. 
 
You are responsible for the design and implementation of programs and controls to prevent and detect fraud, and for 
informing us about all known or suspected fraud or illegal acts affecting the government involving (1) management, 
(2) employees who have significant roles in internal control, and (3) others where the fraud or illegal acts could have 
a material effect on the financial statements.  Your responsibilities include informing us of your knowledge of any 
allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the government received in communications from employees, 
former employees, grantors, regulators, or others.  In addition, you are responsible for identifying and ensuring that 
the entity complies with applicable laws, regulations, contracts, agreements, and grants.  You are also responsible 
for taking timely and appropriate steps to remedy fraud and noncompliance with provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements that we report.  Additionally, as required by the Uniform Guidance, it is 
management’s responsibility to evaluate and monitor noncompliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms 
and conditions of federal awards; take prompt action when instances of noncompliance are identified including 
noncompliance identified in audit findings; promptly follow up and take corrective action on reported audit findings; 
and prepare a summary schedule of prior audit findings and a separate corrective action plan.  The summary 
schedule of prior audit findings should be available for our review by May 1, 2025.  
 



You are responsible for identifying all federal and State awards received and understanding and complying with the 
compliance requirements and for the preparation of the schedule of expenditures of federal and State awards 
(including notes and noncash assistance received, and COVID-19-related concepts, such as lost revenues, if 
applicable) in conformity with the Uniform Guidance.  You agree to include our report on the schedule of 
expenditures of federal and State awards in any document that contains and indicates that we have reported on the 
schedule of expenditures of federal and State awards.  You also agree to make the audited financial statements 
readily available to intended users of schedules of expenditures of federal and State awards no later than the date the 
schedule of expenditures of federal awards is issued with our report thereon.  Your responsibilities include 
acknowledging to us in the written representation letter that (1) you are responsible for presentation of the schedule 
of expenditures of federal and State awards in accordance with the Uniform Guidance; (2) you believe the schedule 
of expenditures of federal and State awards, including its form and content, is stated fairly in accordance with the 
Uniform Guidance; (3) the methods of measurement or presentation have not changed from those used in the prior 
period (or, if they have changed, the reasons for such changes); and (4) you have disclosed to us any significant 
assumptions or interpretations underlying the measurement or presentation of the schedule of expenditures of federal 
and State awards. 
 
You are also responsible for the preparation of the other supplementary information, which we have been engaged to 
report on, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP).  You agree to include our 
report on the supplementary information in any document that contains and indicates that we have reported on the 
supplementary information.  You also agree to make the audited financial statements readily available to users of the 
supplementary information no later than the date the supplementary information is issued with our report thereon.  
Your responsibilities include acknowledging to us in the written representation letter that (1) you are responsible for 
presentation of the supplementary information in accordance with GAAP; (2) you believe the supplementary 
information, including its form and content, is fairly presented in accordance with GAAP; (3) the methods of 
measurement or presentation have not changed from those used in the prior period (or, if they have changed, the 
reasons for such changes); and (4) you have disclosed to us any significant assumptions or interpretations underlying 
the measurement or presentation of the supplementary information. 
 
Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining a process for tracking the status of audit findings and 
recommendations.  Management is also responsible for identifying and providing report copies of previous financial 
audits, attestation engagements, performance audits, or other studies related to the objectives discussed in the Audit 
Scope and Objectives section of this letter.  This responsibility includes relaying to us corrective actions taken to 
address significant findings and recommendations resulting from those audits, attestation engagements, performance 
audits, or studies.  You are also responsible for providing management’s views on our current findings, conclusions, 
and recommendations, as well as your planned corrective actions, for the report, and for the timing and format for 
providing that information.  With regard to publishing the financial statements on your website, you understand that 
websites are a means of distributing information and, therefore, we are not required to read the information 
contained in those sites or to consider the consistency of other information on the website with the original 
document.   
 
Other Services  
 
We will also assist in preparing the financial statements, schedule of expenditures of federal and State awards, and 
related notes of Washington County in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles and the 
Uniform Guidance based on information provided by you.  We may also have to assist with some year-end cash to 
accrual adjusting entries.  These nonaudit services do not constitute an audit under Government Auditing Standards 
and such services will not be conducted in accordance with Government Auditing Standards.  We will perform the 
services in accordance with applicable professional standards.  The other services are limited to the financial 
statements, schedule of expenditures of federal and State awards, and related notes services previously defined.  We, 
in our sole professional judgment, reserve the right to refuse to perform any procedure or take any action that could 
be construed as assuming management responsibilities. 
 
You agree to assume all management responsibilities relating to the financial statements, schedules of expenditures 
of federal and State awards, related notes, and any other nonaudit services we provide.  You will be required to 
acknowledge in the management representation letter our assistance with preparation of the financial statements, 
schedule of expenditures of federal and State awards, and related notes and that you have reviewed and approved the 
financial statements, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards, and related notes prior to their issuance and 
have accepted responsibility for them.  Further, you agree to oversee the nonaudit services by designating an 
individual, (Missy Dixon), who possesses suitable skill, knowledge, or experience; evaluate the adequacy and results 
of those services; and accept responsibility for them.    
 
 



 
Engagement Administration, Fees, and Other 
 
You may request that we perform additional services not addressed in this engagement letter.  If this occurs, we will 
communicate with you regarding the scope of the additional services and the estimated fees.  We also may issue a 
separate engagement letter covering the additional services.  In the absence of any other written communication 
from us documenting such additional services, our services will continue to be governed by the terms of this 
engagement letter. 
 
We understand that your employees will prepare all cash, accounts receivable, or other confirmations we request and 
will locate any documents selected by us for testing.  We will schedule the engagement based in part on deadlines, 
working conditions, and the availability of your key personnel.  We will plan the engagement based on the 
assumption that your personnel will cooperate and provide assistance by performing tasks such as preparing 
requested schedules, retrieving supporting documents, and preparing confirmations.  If for whatever reason your 
personnel are unavailable to provide the necessary assistance in a timely manner, it may substantially increase the 
work we have to do to complete the engagement within the established deadlines, resulting in an increase in fees 
over our original fee estimate.   
 
At the conclusion of the engagement, we will complete the appropriate sections of the Data Collection Form that 
summarizes our audit findings.  It is management’s responsibility to submit the reporting package (including 
financial statements, schedule of expenditures of federal awards, summary schedule of prior audit findings, auditors’ 
reports, and corrective action plan) along with the Data Collection Form to the federal audit clearinghouse.  We will 
coordinate with you the electronic submission and certification.  If applicable, we will provide copies of our report 
for you to include with the reporting package you will submit to pass-through entities.  The Data Collection Form 
and the reporting package must be submitted within the earlier of 30 calendar days after receipt of the auditors’ 
report or nine months after the end of the audit period. 
 
We will provide copies of our reports to the Board; however, management is responsible for distribution of the 
reports and the financial statements.  Unless restricted by law or regulation, or containing privileged and confidential 
information, copies of our reports are to be made available for public inspection. 
 
The audit documentation for this engagement is the property of Thompson, Price, Scott, Adams & Co., P.A. and 
constitutes confidential information.  However, subject to applicable laws and regulations, audit documentation and 
appropriate individuals will be made available upon request in a timely manner to Oversight Agencies (or its 
designee), a federal agency provided direct or indirect funding, or the U.S. Government Accounting Office for 
purposes of a quality review of the audit, to resolve audit findings, or to carry out oversight responsibilities.  We will 
notify you of any such request.  If requested, access to such audit documentation will be provided under the 
supervision of Thompson, Price, Scott, Adams & Co., P.A. personnel.  Furthermore, upon request, we may provide 
copies of selected audit documentation to the aforementioned parties.  These parities may intend, or decide, to 
distribute the copies or information contained therein to others, including other governmental agencies. 
  
The audit documentation for this engagement will be retained for a minimum of five years after the report release 
date or for any additional period requested by the federal cognizant agency.  If we are aware that a federal awarding 
agency, pass-through entity, or auditee is contesting an audit finding, we will contact the party contesting the audit 
finding for guidance prior to destroying the audit documentation. 
 
Alan Thompson is the engagement partner and is responsible for supervising the engagement and signing the reports 
or authorizing another individual to sign them.  We expect to begin our audit by approximately May 1, 2025, and to 
issue our reports no later than December 31, 2025.    Our audit engagement ends on delivery of our audit report.  
Any follow-up services that might be required will be a separate, new engagement.  The terms and conditions of that 
new engagement will be governed by a new, specific engagement letter for that service. 
 
Our fee for these services will be at our standard hourly rates plus out-of-pocket costs (such as report reproduction, 
word processing, postage, travel, copies, telephone, etc.) except that we agree that our gross fee, including expenses, 
should not exceed $61,500.  Also, any excessive additional fees incurred in obtaining required audit evidence (i.e. 
bank confirmations) will be billed directly to the Board.  Our standard hourly rates vary according to the degree of 
responsibility involved and the experience level of the personnel assigned to your audit.  However, if we are not able 
to complete the audit as agreed upon in the Request for Proposal and it is determined to be the fault of the auditor 
(i.e. not because of delays in obtaining confirmations from the State, required actuary reports, being able to get 
onsite for testing due to government restrictions on travel, etc), there will be a $1,000 penalty for every 30 days the 
audit is late.  Our invoices for these fees will be rendered each month as work progresses and are payable on 
presentation.  In accordance with our firm policies, work may be suspended if your account becomes 60 days or 



more overdue and may not be resumed until your account is paid in full.  If we elect to terminate our services for 
nonpayment, our engagement will be deemed to have been completed upon written notification of termination, even 
if we have not completed our report(s).  You will be obligated to compensate us for all time expended and to 
reimburse us for all out-of-pocket costs through the date of termination.  The above fee is based on anticipated 
cooperation from your personnel and the assumption that unexpected circumstances will not be encountered during 
the audit.   
 
If additional programs are required to be tested that have not been identified as major programs for testing in 
previous years, additional fees may be charged at standard hourly rates. If significant additional time is necessary, 
we will discuss it with you and arrive at a new fee estimate before we incur the additional costs.  However, we 
believe our contract as it is will be sufficient to cover but we do want to reserve the right to discuss this issue. 
 
Reporting 
 
We will issue written reports upon completion of our Single Audit.  Our reports will be addressed to the Board of 
Commissioners and management of Washington County.  We will make reference to the Component Auditor’s audit 
of Washington County ABC Board in our report on your financial statements if our firm does not complete the ABC 
audit for the June 30 2025.  Circumstances may arise in which our report may differ from its expected form and 
content based on the results of our audit.  Depending on the nature of these circumstances, it may be necessary for us 
to modify our opinions, add a separate section, or add an emphasis-of-matter or other-matter paragraph to our 
auditors’ report, or if necessary, withdraw from this engagement.  If our opinions are other than unmodified, we will 
discuss the reasons with you in advance.  If, for any reason, we are unable to complete the audit or are unable to 
form or have not formed opinions, we may decline to express opinions or issue reports, or we may withdraw from 
this engagement.  If circumstances occur related to the condition of your records, the availability of sufficient 
appropriate audit evidence, or the existence of a significant risk of material misstatement of the financial statements 
caused by error, fraudulent financial reporting, or misappropriation of assets, which in our professional judgment 
prevent us from completing the audit or forming an opinion on the financial statements, we retain the right to take 
any course of action permitted by professional standards, including declining to express an opinion or issue a report, 
or withdrawing from the engagement. 
 
The Government Auditing Standards report on internal control over financial reporting and on compliance and other 
matters will state that (1) the purpose of the report is solely to describe the scope of testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal 
control or on compliance, and (2) the report is an integral part of an audit performed in  accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance.  The Uniform Guidance 
report on internal control over compliance will include a paragraph that states that the purpose of the report on 
internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of testing of internal control over compliance and the 
results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance.  Both reports will state that the report is 
not suitable for any other purpose. 
 
We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to Washington County and believe this letter accurately summarizes 
the significant terms of our engagement.  If you have any questions, please let us know.  If you agree with the terms 
of our engagement as described in this letter, please sign the enclosed copy and return it to us.  
 
 
Very truly yours, 

 
Alan W. Thompson, CPA 
Thompson, Price, Scott, Adams & Co., P.A. 
 



 
RESPONSE: 
 
 
This letter correctly sets forth the understanding of Washington County. 
 
Management signature: ________________________________________________ 
 
Title: _______________________________________________ 
 
Date: _______________________________________________  
 
 
Governance signature: ________________________________________________ 
 
Title: _______________________________________________ 
 
Date: _______________________________________________  
 
 
CC: Board of Commissioners 

brandy
Sign Here

brandy
Sign Here

brandy
Accepted

brandy
Accepted

brandy
Accepted

brandy
Accepted



 

Position Current 
Starting 
Pay 

Proposed 
Starting 
Pay 

Corrected 
Starting 
Pay 

Difference 
betw 
Current, 
Proposed  
Corrected 
Starting 
Pay  

% 
Difference 
in 
Starting 
Pay 

Est. 
%Diff 
in 
Current 
Pay 

Animal Control Officer 27,509 31,784 Nochange 4,275 15.5% 7% 
Uncertified Deputies 42,445 45,200 

until 
certified 

4500 2,755 
2,555 

6.5% 
 

n/a 

Deputies/SROs/Corporals 
(10) 

42,445 46,000  
+ $2k SB 

46,200 
+2k sb 

3,555 
+$2k 
3,755 
+$2k 

8.37% + 
$2k 

10%-
14% 

Sergeants (2) 44,529 48,791 49,650 4,262 
5,121 

9.57% 
11.5% 

10% 

Investigators (Reduce 
from 3 to 2) 

45,632 49,868 52,500 4,236 
6,868 

9.3% 
15% 

12% 

Lieutenants (2) 47,743 $55,000 57,500 7,257 
9,757 

15.2% 
20.4% 

19% 

Chief Deputy (1) 53,067 59,000 60,700 5,933 
7,633 

11.2% 
14.4% 

10% 

Sheriff (1) 63,572 67,500 69,200 3,928 
5,628 

6.2% 
8.9% 

5% 



Grade Position Title FY25 #POS FY25 Step 1 Step 2 Step 3 Step 4 Step 5 Step 6 Step 7 Step 8y7 Step 8y8 Step 9y9 Step 9y10 Step10y11 Step 10y12 Step 11y13 Step 11y14 Step 12y15 Step 12y16 Step 13y17 Step 13y18 Step 14y19 Step 14y20 Step 15y21 Step 15y22 Step 16y23 Step 16y24 Step 17y25+
(YORE) Index: 45 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25+

8 Veteran's Service OfficerFrozen PT 23,260$      23,838$      24,443$      25,062$      25,653$      26,339$      26,971$      27,656$      27,999$      28,342$      28,685$      29,028$      29,398$      29,767$      30,124$      30,480$      30,883$      31,287$      31,670$      32,053$      32,436$      32,819$      33,242$      33,666$      34,087$      34,507$      
Office Assistant/Floater PT
Housekeeper 2
Maintenance Worker I 3
Senior Center Nutrition Prog. Mgr. 1
Asst Register of Deeds 1
Landfill Operator 1
Accounting Techniciation 1
Property Tax Clerk 2
Utilitity/AR Clerk 2
Waterworks Techanician I 4
Administrative Assistant 3 29,673$      30,386$      31,179$      31,905$      32,711$      33,532$      34,379$      35,240$      35,670$      36,100$      36,544$      36,987$      37,465$      37,942$      38,419$      38,896$      39,380$      39,864$      40,362$      40,859$      41,370$      41,881$      42,392$      42,902$      43,439$      43,975$      
Code Enforement Officer 1 30,735$      31,474$      32,267$      33,088$      33,895$      34,755$      35,629$      36,516$      36,974$      37,431$      37,888$      38,345$      38,822$      39,300$      39,777$      40,254$      40,765$      41,276$      41,813$      42,351$      42,869$      43,387$      43,918$      44,449$      45,005$      45,560$      

16
Chief Landfill Operator                            
Water Plant OperatorFrozen

1           
0 31,784$      32,590$      33,383$      34,231$      35,064$      35,952$      36,826$      37,767$      38,237$      38,708$      39,199$      39,690$      40,187$      40,685$      41,175$      41,666$      42,203$      42,741$      43,252$      43,764$      44,328$      44,893$      45,444$      45,996$      46,571$      47,145$      

Airport Operations Manager 1 32,833$      33,666$      34,514$      35,361$      36,248$      37,162$      38,089$      39,030$      39,521$      40,012$      40,509$      41,007$      41,511$      42,015$      42,546$      43,077$      43,628$      44,180$      44,711$      45,242$      45,807$      46,371$      46,950$      47,528$      48,122$      48,716$      
Soil and Water Supervisor 1
Assistant Tax Assessor 1
Delinquent Tax Coordinator 1
Accounting/HR Specialist 1
Recreation Director 1
Senior Center Director 1
Airport Development Director 1
Tax Land Records Coord 1

21 Clerk to Board/Admin. Asst. 1 37,081$      38,022$      38,990$      39,959$      40,954$      41,962$      42,984$      44,100$      44,644$      45,188$      45,746$      46,304$      46,896$      47,487$      48,059$      48,631$      49,020$      49,410$      50,264$      51,118$      51,756$      52,395$      53,054$      53,712$      54,383$      55,055$      
Elections Director (FN1) 1
Deputy Tax Administrator 1
IT Systems Operator 1
Maintenance Supervisor 1 41,396$      42,419$      43,454$      44,516$      45,673$      46,802$      47,918$      49,168$      49,766$      50,365$      50,990$      51,615$      52,267$      52,919$      53,591$      54,263$      54,936$      55,608$      56,307$      57,006$      57,719$      58,432$      59,144$      59,857$      60,605$      61,353$      
Water Treatment Plant Supervisor 1
Grants & Procurement Manager 1
Register of Deeds (FN2) 1 43,481$      44,543$      45,726$      46,828$      47,985$      49,208$      50,418$      51,695$      52,334$      52,973$      53,638$      54,304$      54,976$      55,649$      56,348$      57,047$      57,759$      58,472$      59,198$      59,924$      60,670$      61,416$      62,183$      62,949$      63,736$      64,522$      

28 Deputy Finance Officer/Financial Analys 1 44,529$      45,699$      46,815$      47,944$      49,181$      50,405$      51,682$      52,960$      53,625$      54,291$      54,963$      55,635$      56,327$      57,019$      57,732$      58,445$      59,164$      59,883$      60,636$      61,389$      62,156$      62,922$      63,702$      64,482$      65,288$      66,094$      
34 Tax Administrator 1 50,943$      52,220$      53,537$      54,828$      56,200$      57,598$      59,036$      60,529$      61,288$      62,048$      62,821$      63,595$      64,388$      65,181$      65,994$      66,808$      67,641$      68,475$      69,328$      70,182$      71,063$      71,944$      72,851$      73,758$      74,680$      75,602$      
39 Utilities Director 1 56,267$      57,638$      59,104$      60,583$      62,102$      63,634$      65,207$      66,848$      67,682$      68,516$      69,382$      70,249$      71,123$      71,998$      72,905$      73,812$      74,719$      75,627$      76,575$      77,523$      78,491$      79,459$      80,447$      81,435$      82,453$      83,471$      

Planning Dir./Bldg Insp (Dual Role) 1
Economic & Strategic Dev Director 1
Finance Officer 1
Assistant County Manager 1
FN1: Elections Director & Employee Compensation Subject to NCGS 163-37 Revised/Effective: 2/16/2025
FN2: Sheriff&ROD Compensation Subject to NCGS 153A-92
FN3: Time spent in uncertified positions is not counted for YORE purposes in a higher pay grade/range position resulting from obtaining certification
FY23 Note: Total actual compensation amounts for NCSU Extension staff should be monitored to insure equitable progression compared to regular county staff.  Countywide COLAs shall be apply only to county portion of pay.
Historical COLAs: [2% 2013];     [2% 2015];     [2% 2018];  [1st YORE adj began w/ Jan22' payroll a year after Jan21' grade adj]     [2.5% 7.16.22];     [2.5% 7.16.23];    [2.5% 7.16.24]
FY25:  Mid-range steps added between steps 8 - 17 effective 12.16.24

84,474$      86,585$      

40 57,342$      58,781$      60,219$      61,753$      63,272$      64,831$      66,445$      68,139$      

43,118$      42,083$      

43,353$      

45,914$      

51,057$      

74,673$      76,528$      

52,334$      

47,078$      

44,436$      

68,986$      69,833$      70,700$      

47,676$      48,845$      50,055$      51,292$      52,596$      

75,197$      76,132$      77,066$      78,020$      78,975$      71,567$      72,461$      73,355$      74,276$      

47,595$      

50,271$      

53,249$      

46,432$      45,323$      

49,450$      

46,680$      47,850$      49,040$      

50,674$      51,944$      

40,873$      41,928$      

34,278$      37,391$      38,291$      36,477$      

43,931$      45,014$      46,157$      47,299$      48,476$      49,715$      

92,112$      

51,695$      52,973$      54,304$      55,649$      57,034$      58,458$      59,924$      61,403$      62,938$      62,171$      

90,989$      88,756$      

60,663$      53,638$      54,976$      56,341$      59,191$      57,746$      

81,247$      82,121$      82,995$      84,032$      85,070$      

77,469$      79,405$      81,395$      

35,434$      36,315$      37,218$      34,137$      

87,647$      89,866$      

32,107$      32,894$      33,714$      

37,444$      

35,562$      

37,041$      37,962$      38,902$      

34,567$      

34,776$      35,636$      36,523$      

33,290$      

39,857$      

38,385$      

83,426$      85,523$      

80,111$      

38,184$      39,166$      40,093$      41,088$      42,083$      43,185$      44,261$      45,350$      46,479$      

78,437$      80,400$      82,410$      62,022$      63,595$      65,168$      66,808$      68,475$      70,182$      71,929$      73,758$      75,587$      

53,901$      55,259$      56,640$      

49,396$      50,607$      51,872$      

44,987$      46,102$      47,259$      48,442$      49,639$      50,902$      52,167$      53,471$      

44,207$      

45,545$      

48,261$      

51,239$      

52,819$      

55,949$      54,580$      

51,534$      

50,002$      48,798$      41,572$      42,594$      

36,033$      36,934$      37,847$      38,789$      39,810$      40,778$      41,801$      42,822$      43,884$      

35,629$      36,530$      37,444$      38,358$      39,326$      40,282$      41,276$      42,351$      43,400$      40,779$      41,813$      42,876$      

36,973$      37,914$      38,856$      39,851$      

 $      38,770 37,841$      36,934$      36,019$      35,132$      

39,353$      40,349$      28,234$      28,921$      29,660$      30,373$      31,166$      31,892$      32,698$      33,519$      34,352$      33,108$      33,935$      

26,460$      

Revised/Effective: 2/16/2025

26 42,445$      43,481$      44,543$      45,712$      46,828$      47,985$      49,195$      

40,847$      

47,851$      49,101$      

25

39,248$      

27,509$      

44

27

22

50,418$      

20

19 34,997$      35,858$      36,731$      37,660$      38,574$      39,528$      40,590$      

50,328$      

43,643$      44,772$      45,874$      46,990$      48,200$      

15

13

14

28,570$      29,296$      37,498$      38,425$      39,380$      40,334$      41,411$      42,446$      

17

18 33,908$      34,782$      44,462$      45,565$      46,748$      

34,702$      

30,009$      30,789$      31,542$      32,336$      33,169$      33,989$      34,822$      35,723$      36,584$      34,406$      35,273$      36,154$      

35,199$      36,072$      

33,451$      31,818$      32,631$      33,855$      27,132$      27,818$      28,490$      29,216$      29,929$      30,694$      31,421$      32,215$      33,047$      

10 25,411$      26,029$      34,997$      35,871$      26,675$      27,361$      28,020$      28,746$      30,560$      31,320$      37,678$      29,444$      

FY25 Washington County 

Salary Schedule/Pay Tables (County - Non Sheriff/Emergency Services & Non-DSS)

11

36,759$      30,198$      30,923$      31,717$      32,497$      

12



Grade FY25 Position Title #POS FY25 Step 1 Step 2 Step 3 Step 4 Step 5 Step 6 Step 7 Step 8y7 Step 8y8 Step 9y9 Step 9y10 Step10y11 Step 10y12 Step 11y13 Step 11y14 Step 12y15 Step 12y16 Step 13y17 Step 13y18 Step 14y19 Step 14y20 Step 15y21 Step 15y22 Step 16y23 Step 16y24 Step 17y25+
(YORE) Index: 66 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25+

14 WCSO Admin Asst 1 $29,673 $30,386 $31,179 $31,905 $32,711 $33,532 $34,379 $35,240 $35,670 $36,100 $36,544 $36,987 $37,465 $37,942 $38,419 $38,896 $39,380 $39,864 $40,362 $40,859 $41,370 $41,881 $42,392 $42,902 $43,439 $43,975
Detention Officer 8
EMT Basic 8
Telecommunicator I - Uncert (FN3) 3

16 Detention Corporal 3 $31,784 $32,590 $33,383 $34,231 $35,064 $35,952 $36,826 $37,767 $38,237 $38,708 $39,199 $39,690 $40,187 $40,685 $41,175 $41,666 $42,203 $42,741 $43,252 $43,764 $44,328 $44,893 $45,444 $45,996 $46,571 $47,145
L1 WCSO Animal Control Officer 1 $32,579 $33,230 $33,895 $34,573 $35,264 $35,969 $36,689 $37,423 $37,797 $38,175 $38,557 $38,942 $39,331 $39,725 $40,122 $40,523 $40,929 $41,338 $41,751 $42,169 $42,590 $43,016 $43,446 $43,881 $44,320 $44,763

EMT Intermediate 5 $32,833 $33,666 $34,514 $35,361 $36,248 $37,162 $38,089 $39,030 $39,521 $40,012 $40,509 $41,007 $41,511 $42,015 $42,546 $43,077 $43,628 $44,180 $44,711 $45,242 $45,807 $46,371 $46,950 $47,528 $48,122 $48,716
Telecommunicator II - EMD Cert (FN3) 4 $32,833 $33,666 $34,514 $35,361 $36,248 $37,162 $38,089 $39,030 $39,521 $40,012 $40,509 $41,007 $41,511 $42,015 $42,546 $43,077 $43,628 $44,180 $44,711 $45,242 $45,807 $46,371 $46,950 $47,528 $48,122 $48,716

18 Detention - Lieutenant 1 $33,908 $34,782 $35,629 $36,530 $37,444 $38,358 $39,326 $40,282 $40,779 $41,276 $41,813 $42,351 $42,876 $43,400 $43,931 $44,462 $45,014 $45,565 $46,157 $46,748 $47,299 $47,851 $48,476 $49,101 $49,715 $50,328
21 911 Telecom Supervisor - EMD Cert 1 $37,081 $38,022 $38,990 $39,959 $40,954 $41,962 $42,984 $44,100 $44,644 $45,188 $45,746 $46,304 $46,896 $47,487 $48,059 $48,631 $49,020 $49,410 $50,264 $51,118 $51,756 $52,395 $53,054 $53,712 $54,383 $55,055
22 EMT Paramedics 9 $38,184 $39,166 $40,093 $41,088 $42,083 $43,185 $44,261 $45,350 $45,914 $46,479 $47,078 $47,676 $48,261 $48,845 $49,450 $50,055 $50,674 $51,292 $51,944 $52,596 $53,249 $53,901 $54,580 $55,259 $55,949 $56,640
23 Chief Detention Officer 1 $39,246 $40,200 $41,195 $42,284 $43,320 $44,368 $45,471 $46,614 $47,198 $47,783 $48,388 $48,993 $49,591 $50,189 $50,822 $51,454 $52,092 $52,731 $53,390 $54,048 $54,728 $55,407 $56,092 $56,778 $57,487 $58,197
L2 WCSO Uncertified Deputy 0 $45,000 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
L3 WCSO Deputy 6
L3 WCSO Corporal 2
L3 WCSO SROs 2
31 Emergency Mgmt Coord 1 $47,743 $48,939 $50,150 $51,400 $52,691 $54,022 $55,353 $56,724 $57,423 $58,122 $58,869 $59,615 $60,348 $61,080 $61,846 $62,613 $63,399 $64,186 $64,986 $65,786 $66,606 $67,426 $68,266 $69,107 $69,970 $70,834
L4 WCSO Sergeant 2 $49,650 $50,643 $51,656 $52,689 $53,743 $54,818 $55,914 $57,032 $57,603 $58,179 $58,760 $59,348 $59,941 $60,541 $61,146 $61,758 $62,375 $62,999 $63,629 $64,265 $64,908 $65,557 $66,213 $66,875 $67,544 $68,219
L5 WCSO Investigator 2 $52,500 $53,550 $54,621 $55,713 $56,828 $57,964 $59,124 $60,306 $60,909 $61,518 $62,133 $62,755 $63,382 $64,016 $64,656 $65,303 $65,956 $66,615 $67,281 $67,954 $68,634 $69,320 $70,013 $70,714 $71,421 $72,135
32 EMS Deputy Director 1 $48,791 $50,029 $51,266 $52,557 $53,887 $55,231 $56,590 $58,001 $58,721 $59,440 $60,186 $60,932 $61,699 $62,465 $63,238 $64,011 $64,811 $65,611 $66,438 $67,264 $68,105 $68,945 $69,806 $70,666 $71,373 $72,080
L6 WCSO Lieutenant 2 $57,500 $58,650 $59,823 $61,019 $62,240 $63,485 $64,754 $66,049 $66,710 $67,377 $68,051 $68,731 $69,419 $70,113 $70,814 $71,522 $72,237 $72,960 $73,689 $74,426 $75,170 $75,922 $76,681 $77,448 $78,223 $79,005
L7 WCSO Chief Deputy 1 $60,700 $61,914 $63,152 $64,415 $65,704 $67,018 $68,358 $69,725 $70,422 $71,127 $71,838 $72,556 $73,282 $74,015 $74,755 $75,502 $76,257 $77,020 $77,790 $78,568 $79,354 $80,147 $80,949 $81,758 $82,576 $83,402
37 EMS Director 1 $54,115 $55,487 $56,885 $58,310 $59,749 $61,255 $62,761 $64,321 $65,134 $65,947 $66,761 $67,574 $68,428 $69,281 $70,135 $70,989 $71,890 $72,791 $73,685 $74,579 $75,513 $76,447 $77,408 $78,370 $79,349 $80,329
L8 WCSO Sheriff (FN2) 1 $69,200 $70,584 $71,996 $73,436 $74,904 $76,402 $77,930 $79,489 $80,284 $81,087 $81,898 $82,717 $83,544 $84,379 $85,223 $86,075 $86,936 $87,805 $88,683 $89,570 $90,466 $91,371 $92,284 $93,207 $94,139 $95,081

Refer to FNs on Non-Sheriff/Emergency Services Salary Schedule/Pay Tables Revised/Effective: 2/16/2025
FY25:  Mid-range steps added between steps 8 - 17 effective 12.16.24
L1-L8 regraded eff 2/16/25 w/ 2%/1% progression values

Grade Position Title FY25 #POS FY25 Step 1 Step 2 Step 3 Step 4 Step 5 Step 6 Step 7 Step 8y7 Step 8y8 Step 9y9 Step 9y10 Step10y11 Step 10y12 Step 11y13 Step 11y14 Step 12y15 Step 12y16 Step 13y17 Step 13y18 Step 14y19 Step 14y20 Step 15y21 Step 15y22 Step 16y23 Step 16y24 Step 17y25+
(YORE) Index: 54 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25+

52FN1 Housekeeper  (FN1) 1 $25,411 $26,029 $26,675 $27,361 $28,020 $28,746 $29,444 $30,198 $30,560 $30,923 $31,320 $31,717 $32,107 $32,497 $32,894 $33,290 $33,714 $34,137 $34,567 $34,997 $35,434 $35,871 $36,315 $36,759 $37,218 $37,678
Processing Assistant V 2
IM CW I 0
Vehicle Operator I 5
Transportation Coordinator 1
IM Caseworker II (FN2) 14
Info Processing Tech 2
Social Worker I 0
CS Enforcement Agent II 0
IM Investigator II (FN2) 1
IM Caseworker III (FN2) 5

IM Supervisor II 2
Paralegal I 1
Transit Supervisor 1
Social Worker II (FN3) 5

69 Social Worker III (FN3) 5 $40,026 $41,021 $42,002 $42,997 $44,046 $45,175 $46,304 $47,582 $48,146 $48,711 $49,269 $49,827 $50,472 $51,118 $51,750 $52,382 $53,061 $53,740 $54,371 $55,003 $55,729 $56,455 $57,134 $57,812 $58,565 $59,318
Social Worker Inv/Ass/Tr (FN3) 3
Social Worker Supervisor II 1
Computer System Administrator I 0 - Frozen

73 Social Worker Supervisor III 3 $48,711 $49,827 $51,118 $52,382 $53,740 $55,003 $56,455 $57,812 $58,565 $59,318 $60,071 $60,824 $61,584 $62,344 $63,117 $63,890 $64,683 $65,476 $66,283 $67,090 $67,944 $68,798 $69,624 $70,451 $71,325 $72,199
75 Social Services Deputy Director 1 $53,740 $55,003 $56,455 $57,812 $59,318 $60,824 $62,344 $63,890 $64,683 $65,476 $66,283 $67,090 $67,944 $68,798 $69,624 $70,451 $71,325 $72,199 $73,126 $74,054 $74,989 $75,923 $76,858 $77,792 $78,760 $79,728
81 Social Services Director 1 $72,100 $73,833 $75,664 $77,609 $79,568 $81,525 $83,555 $85,654 $86,718 $87,782 $88,874 $89,966 $91,093 $92,220 $93,368 $94,516 $95,693 $96,870 $98,088 $99,307 $100,547 $101,788 $103,048 $104,309 $105,599 $106,888

FN1: DSS Housekeeper step values are based on and pasted into the schedule from the non-DSS salary schedule's values for non-DSS housekeepers to create equity between all housekeeper positions Revised/Effective: 2/16/2025
FN2: YORE value subject to work against reduction (refer to Supplemental DSS YORE Guidelines v20201216)
FN3: Subject to YORE reductions for Work Against/Prior Experience (refer to Supplemental DSS YORE Guidelines v20201216)
CS = Child Support
IM = Income Maintenance
FY25:  Mid-range steps added between steps 8 - 17 effective 12.16.24

$59,208 $59,800 $60,398 $61,002 $61,612 $62,228 $62,850 $63,479

$36,974 $37,431 $37,888 $38,345 $38,822 $39,300 $39,777

$57,466 $58,041 $58,621$46,200 $47,124 $48,066 $49,028 $50,008 $51,009 $52,029 $53,069 $53,600 $54,136 $54,677 $55,224 $55,776 $56,334 $56,897

17

15 $30,735 $31,474 $32,267 $33,088 $33,895 $34,755 $35,629 $36,516

$51,750

$39,535$39,044 $40,026

$58,565 $60,071 $61,584

$48,146

$43,521$42,997 $44,046

$53,061

$47,582 $48,711

$62,344

$45,175

$41,021

$37,203 $37,646

$41,511 $42,499

$38,566$38,089

$42,002

$45,740 $46,943$46,304

$39,044

$34,540 $35,387

$38,566 $39,535

$35,858 $36,328 $36,765

$40,523$40,026

$34,964

$38,089$29,848 $30,560

$27,051 $27,751 $28,410 $29,136 $29,848 $30,560 $31,327

$31,327 $32,080 $32,873 $33,680 $34,540

$51,750 $53,061

$44,610 $45,740

$35,387 $36,328 $36,765 $37,646$37,203$35,858

$39,535

$32,873 $33,276 $34,110$33,680

$39,044

$43,521

$40,026 $40,523 $41,511$41,021

$32,476$32,080

$42,351 $42,869 $43,387 $43,918 $44,449 $45,005

Revised/Effective: 2/16/2025

$46,304 $47,582$42,002 $42,997 $44,046 $45,17570 $53,740 $55,003 $56,455

63

FY25 Washington County 

$49,827 $51,118 $52,382 $53,740

Salary Schedule/Pay Tables (Sheriff/Emergency Services Only)

$42,002 $42,997 $44,046 $45,175 $46,304 $47,582

$48,711 $49,827 $51,118 $52,382

$48,711

$57,812 $59,318 $60,824$54,371

$46,943 $48,146

$55,729 $57,134

$49,269 $50,472

$50,472

67 $36,328 $37,203 $38,089 $39,044 $40,026 $41,021

65 $32,873 $33,680 $34,540 $35,387 $36,328 $37,203 $38,089 $42,002 $42,499 $42,997 $43,521 $44,610$44,046

61

Revised/Effective: 2/16/2025

$40,254 $40,765 $41,276 $41,813 $45,560

FY25 Washington County 

Salary Schedule/Pay Tables (DSS Only)



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 

       ITEM NO:   2  
 
       DATE:     April 7, 2025 
ITEM:        Public Forum (3-5 minute limit per speaker) 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
As is required by North Carolina General Statute §153A-52.1, time has been allotted for comments from 
the public. 

  
Public Comment Statements 

In December of 2015, the Washington County Board of Commissioners adopted a public comment period.  
Essentially this policy said that a public comment period shall be set aside at the beginning of each regular 
monthly Commissioners and it shall be limited to a maximum of thirty (30) minutes. 
 
Additionally, this policy stated that all speakers are required to sign up prior to the meeting at which they 
wish to speak. The signup sheet must be on the podium 30 mins prior to the meeting.  Each speaker shall 
clearly write their name, address, and the topic upon which they wish to speak on the signup sheet.   
This board adopted rules that must be followed. Some of the high points of those rules, which I wish to 
remind the public is: 

1. Speakers shall be acknowledged by the Board Chairperson. 
2. Speakers shall address the Board from the lectern at the front of the room, and begin their remarks 

by stating their name and address.   
3. Public comment is not intended to require any Board or staff members to answer any impromptu 

questions or engage in debate.  Speakers shall address all remarks to the Board as a body, and not 
to any individual board or staff members.  Discussions between speakers and members of the 
audience shall not be allowed. 

4. Speakers shall be courteous in their language and presentations, and shall not use profanity, racial 
slurs, or make any obscene remarks, nor engage in any personal attacks of commissioners.  

5. Speakers shall have a maximum of three (3) to five (5) minutes to make their remarks depending 
on the number of speakers and topics.  The Chairperson may limit the number of speakers allowed 
to make substantially similar comments with respect to the same topic.   

6. Speakers who have prepared written remarks or supporting documents are encouraged to leave a 
copy of such remarks and documents with the County Clerk. 

7. Speakers shall not discuss any of the following:  matters which are the subject of public hearings 
set for the same meeting; matters which are closed session matters, including without limitation 
matters within the attorney-client privilege, anticipated or pending litigation, personnel, property 
acquisition, and matters which are made confidential by law. 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  3 
 
       DATE:     April 7, 2025 
 
ITEM:        Board of Equalization & Review, Ms. Sherri Wilkins, Tax Administrator 
 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 

a) Administration of Oath 

The Clerk to the Board will administer the Oath of Office to each Board 
member. 

b) Motion to convene as the Board of Equalization and Review (E & R) 
 
c) Hearing of Appeals 

As of the preparation of this agenda package, Sherri Wilkins, Tax 
Administrator, has informed the County Manager’s Office that there are no 
appeals at this time. 

 
d) Motion to recess the Board of E & R until May 5, 2025 at 6:00 PM in the 

Commissioners’ Room. 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  4 
 
       DATE:     April 7, 2025 
 
ITEM:        Public Hearing—Vacant Schools/Department Relocation, Mr. Kelly 

Chesson, ED Director 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
Mr. Chesson gave a presentation at the March 3, 2025 BoCC Meeting regarding the 
abovementioned subject.  Tonight, we will be having a public hearing on the matter to 
gain public input before the Board makes any decision on this. Attached is a one-page 
summary. 



Department Relocation: Assessment & Recommendations 

The presentation evaluates the best relocation site for staff efficiency, community access, 
and long-term sustainability. Two sites were compared: 

• Plymouth High School (PHS) 
• Washington County Middle School (WCMS) 

Key Factors & Findings 
1. Accessibility & Public Engagement 

o PHS: Located in Plymouth, close to businesses, hotels, and services. 
o WCMS: Centrally located in the county, with better accessibility for seniors. 
o Conclusion: Both sites are viable for public accessibility. 

2. Security & Department Separation 
o WCMS: Isolated location with independent entrances, easier department 

separation, potential for Sheriff & EMS substation. 
o PHS: Higher crime concerns require added security measures. 
o Conclusion: WCMS is the better option for security and privacy. 

3. Senior Center & Community Programs 
o PHS: Larger kitchen and cafeteria support Meals on Wheels but has 

accessibility challenges. 
o WCMS: Easier entry and accessible bathrooms but farther from most senior 

participants. 
o Conclusion: WCMS is better for senior services, while PHS supports 

community engagement. 
4. Financial Costs & Long-Term Sustainability 

o PHS: Requires costly renovations and has limited field availability for 
recreation. 

o WCMS: Lower costs, easier renovations, and better long-term investment 
potential. 

5. Final Recommendations 
o PHS: Best for indoor recreation and community events, but costly to 

renovate. 
o WCMS: Best for health services, elections, senior center, and recreation, 

with security, accessibility, and lower costs. 
o Long-term, replacing PHS might be more cost-effective than renovating it. 

Next Steps 
• Public Hearing in April 
• Board of Commissioners (BoC) Meeting site decision selection for consolidation 





















 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ITEM NO: 5 
 
DATE: April 7, 2025 

ITEM: Public Hearing—Zoning Ordinance—Corridor Commercial 
District Amendment, Mr. Allen Pittman, Planning/Safety 

 
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 

 
 At their meeting on March 20, 2025, the Washington County Planning Board held two 
public hearings. 
 

The first was to consider text amendments to the zoning ordinance Article 3:B, 
Corridor Commercial District to allow consideration of areas in Washington County where 
there is no public sewer to be re-zoned for Commercial Development, as long as 
environmental protection for wastewater, since there is no public sewer available in any 
unincorporated area of Washington County.  
  

It was the unanimous decision of the Planning Board, based on a recommendation 
from the Planning Director, that the text amendments, as outlined in red in the attached 
document, be approved by the Washington County Board of Commissioners.  This 
amendment was discussed with environmental health, who offered guidance to the Planning 
Board.  Consideration was given to future economic development, and discussed with Mr. 
Chesson, ED Director, as well. 

 
RESO 2025-005 is attached for the Commissioners’ consideration. 

 
 

 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

AGENDA STATEMENT 





























Washington County Resolution 2025-005 Page 1 of 2  

 
 

 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION 2025-005 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF 

COMMISSIONERS APPROVING A TEXT AMENDMENT TO ARTICLE 
3(B) (CORRIDOR COMMERCIAL DISTRICT) OF THE WASHINGTON 

COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE 
 

WHEREAS, the Washington County Zoning Ordinance establishes zoning districts and 
regulations to guide orderly growth and development within the county; and 

 
WHEREAS, Article 3(B) (Corridor Commercial District) of the County Zoning Ordinance has 

been reviewed and proposed modifications have been made, as set forth in the attached amendment; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Washington County Planning Board conducted a duly noticed public hearing 

on the proposed amendments, considered public input, and carefully reviewed the modifications; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Washington County Planning Board, upon deliberation, has unanimously 
recommended that the Board of Commissioners approve the proposed amendments to Article 3(B) 
(Corridor Commercial District) of the County Zoning Ordinance; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Washington County Board of Commissioners also conducted a duly noticed 

public hearing on the proposed amendments, considered public input, and carefully reviewed the 
modifications; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Washington County Board of Commissioners finds that the proposed 

amendments are consistent with the goals and objectives of the Washington County Comprehensive 
Land Use Plan and further the county’s vision for balanced development, economic growth, and 
responsible land use planning; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Washington County Board of Commissioners has determined that approval of 

the proposed amendments serves the best interests of the citizens of Washington County and promotes 
the health, safety, and general welfare of the community; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Washington County Board of Commissioners 

that: 
 
1. The amendments to Article 3(B) (Corridor Commercial District) of the Washington County 

Zoning Ordinance, as set forth in the attached document, are hereby approved and adopted. 

 



Washington County Resolution 2025-005 Page 2 of 2  

2. The Board of Commissioners finds that the approved amendments are consistent with the 
Washington County Comprehensive Land Use Plan. 

3. This resolution shall be effective upon its adoption. 

 

 
ADOPTED this  day of  2025. 

 
 

 
Carol V. Phelps, Chair 

Washington County Board of Commissioners 
 
 

ATTEST:   
Julie J. Bennett, MMC, NCMCC 
Clerk to the Board 

 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  6 
 
       DATE:     April 7, 2025 
 
ITEM: Public Hearing—Request for Change in Zoning Classification, Mr. Allen 

Pittman, Planning/Safety 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
 The Washington County Planning Board held a second public hearing at their 
meeting on March 20, 2025. 
 
 The second hearing was to consider a request from Mr. Gary Haraguchi on behalf 
of Bethany Acres, to change the zoning classification from R-A, Rural Area Single 
Family Residential to Corridor Commercial /Retail Commercial for Parcel number 
6787.00-49-3872; 31.28 acres to establish a commercial fishing tackle store, with a 
warehouse/drive through coffee/boat rigging/RV and Boat storage facility (no storage 
units).     

In order for this application to meet the zoning requirement, the text amendments 
in the previous public hearing held tonight will have to be adopted by the Board of 
Commissioners.  The Planning Board approved unanimously to recommend this 
application for a zoning classification change to be approved, pending the outcome of the 
text amendment.   
 
 Attached is information from the Planning Board. 
 
 





























 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  7 
 
       DATE:     April 7, 2025 
 
ITEM:        Boards & Committees, Ms. Julie Bennett, Clerk to the Board 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
 
TRAVEL & TOURISM AUTHORITY BOARD 
 

Mr. Lou Manring has recently resigned from the TTA board.   The TTA Board 
met Tuesday, March 25, 2025 and unanimously voted to have Mr. Mark Pardue replace 
Mr. Manring.  Mr. Pardue is the curator of the Roanoke River Maritime Museum and 
serves on several boards, including the Museum of the Albemarle.  He also is serving on 
the America 250th Committee and the county’s new Economic Development 
Council.  As such, he will make a valuable member of the TTA board.   
  

The TTA Board is requesting the Commissioners’ approval of the TTA’s 
nomination  of Mr. Mark Pardue. 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  8 
 
       DATE:  April 7, 2025 
 
ITEM:        Finance Officer’s Report 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
Ms. Missy Dixon, Finance Officer, will discuss the enclosed budget transfers and budget 
amendments for Board’s approval/disapproval. 
 
See attached. 
 
 
 































































































































































 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:   9 
 
       DATE:     April 7, 2025 
 
ITEM:       Other Items by Chairman, Commissioners, County Manager/Attorney, 

Finance Officer or Clerk 
 
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
Items to be discussed: 
 

 
 Department Head Reports from March 2025 (see attached) 
 Statistic Reports (see attached) 
 Register of Deeds Roll-Up Summary 

 



 

Department Head Reports to the Commissioners 
April 2, 2025 

Board of Commissioners’ Meeting 
 
EMS 
Jennifer O’Neal 
 
EMS STAFFING: 
The EMS Division currently has (3) Full-Time Paramedic positions and (2) Basic EMT Positions 
available.  The Transport Division has two Full-Time EMT positions available.  We are also 
accepting applications for part-time positions for all levels (EMT, A-EMT, and Paramedic).  We 
are anticipating Laquesta Bond to complete her Paramedic training soon; she is in the last phase 
completing her Capstone hours. EMT-Basic Dakota Phelps is scheduled to begin Paramedic 
training in May. This class will finish in April, 2026.  
 
SAFETY: 
We continue to participate in the Injury Prevention System program through the NCACC 
monthly with safety sheets.  
 
SYSTEM BUSINESS: 
RACECARS Trial is bringing several more AED’s into our community soon and we continue to 
teach the public as the system allows.  
  
Thank you for your continued support of Washington-Tyrrell County EMS. 
 
 
Recreation 
Randy Fulford 
  
We just finished the basketball League this past Saturday. The teams did an awesome job, and 
they received trophies for 1st and 2nd place. The others received participation medals. The 
cheerleaders also received cheer medals. One of the teams went into overtime. We have put fliers 
to the schools for Tri County coed flag football the deadline for this April 19th.  Then signups for 
Tee-Ball , softball , baseball and soccer is April 21st and deadline is April 30th . We are going to 
have basketball tournament’s to get ready for Basketball   State Games are in June in 
Greensboro, NC. Weekly we have karate on Tuesdays at 7 pm. 
 
 
Elections 
Dora Bell 
 
The Board of Elections office has just completed a class in Durham this past week. I also 
completed a list of NCOA (clean-up) cards. 

 

 



 

Library 

Nate King 
  
No report submitted. 
 
 
Cooperative Extension 
Rebecca Liverman 
   
  

 
 



 

 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 
 
 
Tax Office 
Sherri Wilkins 
 

1. Received the check for the delinquent solar accounts for Albemarle Beach Solar 
and VL Land Direct.  

2. Interviews for the Tax Clerk position were conducted on the 14th.  



 

3. We continue to work every day with Zacchaeus Legal Services (ZLS) – sending 
tax information, verifying balances due, completing tax certifications, adding 
attorney fees and/or suit cost.  

4. Received Tax Certification requests from ZLS for court filings April 3rd.  
5. Assisted the taxpayers with the Tag & Tax program, handling value adjustments, 

refunds, releases, address corrections and general questions regarding motor 
vehicles. We had several requests that appealed the value, several where the tag 
had been turned in and several that had been charged taxes for being in a town, but 
they were not in a town.  This takes up a lot of Christal’s time.  

6. Continue to verify PINs for Deed filings, process Tax Certifications and assign 
addresses in GIS – we had several address requests. We have a variation of these 
daily.  

7. Continue to work with the landfill. They call us for verification of ownership 
of a property, for example, there is a new owner for a property and that person 
is going into the landfill but before they are allowed to dump their debris or 
trash, the landfill calls us to make sure they own the property at the address 
they have given.  

8. The Statistical report was submitted. 
9. Sent mapping updates to Joe with Atlas.  
10. The office remains busy with tax payments, releases, appeal questions, 

exemption questions, questions that always arise after the tax bills are received. 
11. We remain busy with the processing of the Business Personal Property forms 

and Abstract – Individual Personal Property forms.   
12. Hollie continues to work on deed transfers and estate transfers and she assists 

at the front counter as needed. We had several estates we had questions on so 
we contacted the Land Records department of the state to get clarification.  

13. Assisted Dora Bell with mapping issues/additional information she needed.  
14. Christal continues to work with the queues with NCVTS.  
15. Christal and I attended the Commissioners meeting.  
16. Worked several days with Darlene Fikes on the Keystone Software conversion.  
17. Beer & Wine letters were mailed to businesses reminding them to renew by 

April 30th.  
 

Planning/Inspections/Floodplain Management 
Allen Pittman 
 
Permits Issued    24 
 Inspections Completed 32 
 Floodplain Reviews    2 
 
 Plan review for EMTOC building – zoning approved by Town of Plymouth 

In discussion with individual who wants to operate a sober living home within county 
jurisdiction 
 

 Plan/application reviews:        2 
 Map/Plat review   3 
 



 

 7, 14, 21, 28     Tyrrell County per contract 
 18th     assisted EM with Public Safety Awareness Day 
 
 20th    Planning Board: 
  

Recommended adoption of text amendment to zoning ordinance Article 
3:B.  Corridor Commercial District, and update of Special Use vs Allowed 
Use in district.  The purpose of the amendment is to address areas where 
no sewer is available.   
 
Recommended approval for rezoning of property located along US 64 
across from WC PK-12 School for commercial development.  This 
rezoning is dependent upon the adoption of text amendment to Article 3:B. 

 
Completed work with NC code officials on re-write of exam questions for Administrative 
Code and Policies 

 
 
Emergency Management 
Lance Swindell  
 
March 5th -DHM 
March 6th -Presentation at Senior Center 
March 10th- Meet w/Boat Builder 
March 11th- Structure Fire Davenport Forks/Creswell 
March 12th - Grant Training 
March 13th- Search and Rescue Training/Creswell 
March 17th -Pick up Boat 
March 18th- Public Safety Awareness Day 
March 19th -Neogov set up review/Waterman 
March 20th- NCEM Area 1&2 Meeting and DAWG Mtg./Perquimans 
March 21st- Commissioners’ Mtg./Spec. Called 
March 23rd-26th -NCEMA Fall Conference Cherokee 
March 27th- Budget Meeting 
March 31st- Public Safety Meeting 
 
 
Soil and Water 
Chris Respass 
 

1. Inspected work completed for the S.t.r.a.p program. All work was of high quality 
and surpassed standards. All contracted work has been completed. Including local 
funds being expended on the Scuppernong River. 

2. A large beaver management project on Long Ridge is coming to completion. The 
area spanned almost 6 miles long and had multiple colonies of beaver causing 
flood damage on properties and railways. 



 

3. Provided information needed on share point. Waiting for the division to send the 
Master Agreement for signature. 

4. Inspected cover crop establishment for 2025 contracts. Asked the cooperators to 
contact me when they plan to terminate the crop so I can get record and start 
RFPs. 

5. Shot post surveys for Precision Land-forming and Smoothing. 
6. Met with Allen Accounting to discuss needs for quarterly reports and yearly 

summary reports for the soil and water board finances. 
7. I signed both myself and the admin assistant up for Basics of Conservation 

training in Mount Olive from May 12 to the 16th. This is a course that will help 
break down the resource concern identification process and all the cost share 
materials available. 

8. Spoke with the division about the reimbursement grant for a drone for the district. 
In the process of looking for a drone in that price range with lidar capability or 
multispectral camera capabilities. 

9. We are waiting on a quote from Big Rock in Elizabeth City for the UTV intended 
to be purchased with the 15% Admin Fees from the S.t.r.a.p. contract. 

10. The department also attended the Ag Field Day at Pocosin Charter School in 
Creswell. The soil tent was intended to be set up, but the wind was too strong. We 
presented the enviro-scape in partnership with Tyrell County Soil and Water and 
NRCS. 

 
Landfill 
Hakeim Blakeney 
 
 On the landfill agenda we have cleared a section for people to back up and dump.  
 We  have started covering C&D with dirt. 
 Servicing and doing maintenance on lawn equipment. 
 Started taking lights off police cars and cleaning up. 

 
 
Sheriff’s Office/Detention/E911 
Chief Deputy Arlo Norman/Clinta Blount/Harley Spruill 
 
 Detention: 
 

 
 
 
 



 

Information Technology 
Darlene Fikes 
 
Mediacom: Have not heard back from Mediacom. They were supposed to draw out a plan to 
replace cable in the Courthouse using the stairwell where they will be able to branch off at each 
floor. 
 
Tax Office Software Migration: Found some conversion programs Lonnie wrote. Forwarded 
information to Cox & Company to see if it will help. If programs work will save time/money for 
conversion of data. Cox & Company not able to run these programs since they have a different 
mainframe, so we will need to run the programs. Going to test this weekend. 
 
FY24 911 Grant: Waiting for reimbursement of $86,365.23.  
 
FY26 911 Grant: Attend workshop March 26. Contacting vendors to get quotes. Will need to have 
by Mary 1 in order to send to 911 Board to determine eligibility. 
 
NCDIT: Notification that Telcom companies will no longer be required to provide copper landline 
services. Need to transition of SIP lines by December 2025. 
 
 

1. Contact Verizon to get information on Intercarrier EMAG for 911 CAD texts. 
2. Attend Teams meeting with Keystone, BLaST, SSG & Sherri. Work on items for migration  

of Tax. 
3. Work with Cox & Company and Keystone. Upload tax files for conversion. 
4. Submit December monthly report to 911 Board. December report required in addition to 

final report. 
5. Get Dell quotes and place orders for Water Plant, Facilities, Water and Finance. Get Dell  

quote for FY25-26 budget for Soil & Water. 
6. Move Kiosk from Jail to basement (preparing for elevator being down). 
7. Attend Teams meeting with NCDIT on Telephone Services, Billing & Subscriptions on 

February 26 and 27 and Town Hall on March 6. 
8. Troubleshoot error on postage machine. 
9. Motorola Past Due Notice research and email Motorola that invoice has been paid. 
10. Contact Lance concerning paging – gave him contact several weeks ago to get corrected. 

Assist and review FY25-26 911 and Communications Budget with Harley. 
11. Work on incoming spoof emails from Joanne at Town of Plymouth. 
12. Create 3-ring binder for documentation information on Tax migration. 
13. Reboot all 911 servers, Hyper-V1 and Hyper-V2. Had issues. Work with SSG to resolve. 
14. Troubleshoot issue with Finance fax. 
15. Assist Nicholas Scolaro in NCID password change. 
16. Create invoice for 911 2024 Grant ($86,365.23) with Tina and email to 911 Board on  

March 18. 
17. Review MCNC contract for 911. 3-year contract expires May 2025. Request renewal of   

3-year contract with term of July 1 -June 30. 
18. Assist Archie with log-in on MDT. 
19. Troubleshoot issue with ups in Tax. Needs to be replaced-get quote and send to Sherri. 
20. Balance IT FY24-25 Budget. Work on IT FY25-26 Budget. 



 

21. Check postage machine during the month to determine when postage is needed.     
22. Attend County Manager group meetings. 
23. Stamp, sign & copy invoices & take to Finance. 
24. Verify CopyPro and VC3 invoices for Finance. 
25. Complete Weekly Activity Report for County Manager 

 
 
Senior Center 
Renee’ Collier 
 

 
 
 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Surplus 
Debbie Knieper 
 
 
Personal Property Surplus Year End Update FY2024 to 2025 

 
Sold 
 

ID Asset Price       Beginning Bid  Status 
 

2025-002 Panasonic Tough Books $100.00 S/PU 
2025-003 TV, VCR, DVD $20.00 S/PU 
2025-001 Dell Optiplex 380 w Monitor $0.00 Tossed 
2025-004 2010 Ford Fusion $3,000.00 1,000 S/PU 
2025-005 Ford E 450 2016 $7,120.00 2750 S/PU 
2025-006 HP Jet Pro SC $76.00 50 S/PU 
2025-007 IBM Printer $0.00 40 Tossed 
2025-008 HP Jet Pro 8620 Printer $40.00 40 S/PU 
2025-010 Dell Optiplex 330 $0.00 20 Tossed 
2025-011 Optiplex 3070 $40.00 40 S/PU 
2025-012 2008 Dodge Charger $725.00 250 S/PU 

 
Total 
 
No Updates for April Meeting 
 

 
The total above, $   has been brought back to county for items not being utilized during FY 2024 
to 2025 
 
 
 
Airport 
Mary Moscato 
 
Project Update:  
 Airfield Lighting Improvement Project 

• Scope: Project includes the replacement of runway edge and runway threshold 
lighting, replacement of precision approach path indicator system (PAPI) , 
replacement of runway end indicator lights (REIL), electrical vault modifications, and 
an existing beacon light fixture to be replaced. 

• Status: FAA conducted a flight check and certified the PAPI lights on runway 21. 
Runway 3 was not certified because of tree obstruction. The project will remain open 

$11,121 



 

until the Obstruction Removal project is completed and the FAA can conduct a 
second flight check on runway 3.  

 RPZ Obstruction 
• Scope: Consists of clearing approximately 33 acres of trees from the approach areas 

of Runway 3 and 21. The project includes design, permitting, bidding, CATEX, and 
grant assistance services. This Project may include, but is not limited to, such 
construction elements as clearing, clearing and grubbing, erosion and sediment 
control, construction safety and phasing plans, turf restoration, and other similar 
construction items. 

• Status: The project was rebid, and the bid opening was held on March 18th. Three 
bids were received and ranged from $881,365.05 - $580,339.25. On March 20th the 
bid was awarded to Sawyer Land Development. Pending contract.   

 AWOS (Automated Weather Observing System) 
• Status: After consideration of future development at the airport the location has been 

shifted 500’ North. Before design can start a CATEX needs to be completed, a Pen & 
Ink Update to the ALP, and an NR study. Received a Work Authorization for 
approval to conduct the CATEX environmental study.  

 Terminal Parking Lot Rehabilitation 
• Scope: Rehabilitate part of the existing access road to the Airport and the airport 

terminal area parking lot. The project is anticipated to include a mix of full depth 
pavement replacement of the existing asphaltic pavement and mill and overlay of the 
existing asphaltic road and parking lot pavement. 

• Status: The Independent Fee Estimate (IFE) was completed.  Work Authorization 
(WA) has been sent to the NCDOA for review.  The BIL AIG grant application has 
been submitted.  

 
Other Activities: 

• An electrician worked on rewiring a section of the fuel farm and converted various 
switches to explosion proof switches – required by code.  
 

Revenue Update (as of 03/31/25): 
• March Fuel Sales: $4,784.59 
• Total fuel sales for FY25: $48,521.39 (64.70% Realized)    
• Hangar Leases:  $15,600 (100%) 

 
 

Facility Services 
Ricky Young 
 
Safety Briefing 

• No issues 

Work Order Review 

• We have completed 80 work orders 
 
 



 

Preventive Maintenance Schedule 

Project Updates 

• The Courthouse roof project has been completed 

• Patched and painted the Court room hallway 

• Completed installing new signs at DSS 

• Repaired the locks and doors in the Jail 

Staffing and Training 

• Requesting a new position to help with the extra buildings we will be getting 

New Business 

• Mandated to install 7 backflow preventers 

 
 
DSS 
Clifton Hardison 



 

 
 



 

 
 



 

 
 
 

 
 



 

 
 

 
 



 

 
 

 
 



 

 
 

 
 



 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 



 

 

 
 

 
 

 



 

 

 
 

 
 



 

 

 
 

 



 

 



 

 

Reporting Period:   



July Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June YTD Totals

Amount* -$                                        

Current Year Tax 1,034,603.36$    472,813.97$       1,716,260.60$  359,027.43$   252,118.91$   2,106,482.61$    700,876.18$      101,266.77$   6,743,449.83$                     

Current Yr Discount -$                      (2,288.44)$          (17,589.09)$       -$                  -$                  -$                       -$                     -$                  (19,877.53)$                          

Current Year Penalty -$                      84.94$                 3,143.33$          758.09$           282.21$           7,393.01$            1,264.21$          763.50$           13,689.29$                           

Current Year Interest -$                      -$                      1.85$                   345.61$           18.24$             -$                       3,333.51$          2,745.48$       6,444.69$                              Oct Int is on Deferred Taxes made Due 

Watershed Tax Current Yr 900.00$               1,339.03$            20,694.17$        4,317.62$       2,834.21$       24,967.22$          8,307.65$          1,082.98$       64,442.88$                           

Watershed Discount -$                      (25.44)$                (205.23)$             -$                  -$                  -$                       -$                     -$                  -$                                        

Watershed Penalty -$                      1.05$                    37.18$                7.86$                3.20$                88.08$                  13.30$                7.04$                157.71$                                 

Watershed Interest -$                      -$                      -$                     3.38$                -$                  -$                       35.88$                28.65$             67.91$                                    Oct Int is on Deferred Taxes made Due 

Prior Year Tax 113,986.52$       43,681.96$         24,819.23$        16,739.69$     17,640.25$     14,073.23$          30,405.48$        12,622.34$     273,968.70$                         

Prior Year Penalty 533.81$               46.79$                 88.76$                56.61$             118,382.20$   651.67$                99.63$                65.62$             119,925.09$                         

Prior Year Interest 107,944.06$       164,514.32$       6,368.56$          3,241.20$       47,996.24$     3,080.20$            5,214.38$          1,967.57$       340,326.53$                         

Prior Year Watershed 427.68$               172.72$               237.18$              185.25$           121.76$           99.19$                  263.76$              159.57$           1,667.11$                              

Prior Year WS Penalty 5.90$                    0.28$                    0.91$                   0.70$                0.16$                1.99$                    0.59$                   1.40$                11.93$                                    

Prior Year WS Interest 483.98$               346.23$               337.46$              331.52$           181.50$           112.78$                253.18$              228.61$           2,275.26$                              

Bad Checks -$                      -$                      -$                     -$                  -$                  -$                       -$                     -$                  -$                                        

Prepayments -$                      83.08$                 921.61$              2,654.05$       4,626.74$       2,101.07$            3,111.61$          4,774.56$       18,272.72$                           

TOTAL 1,258,885.31$   680,770.49$      1,755,116.52$  387,669.01$  444,205.62$  2,159,051.05$   753,179.36$     125,714.09$  -$                  -$                  -$                -$                  7,564,822.12$                     

Initiated 0 0 0 0 -                    0 0 0 0

Amount -$                      -$                      -$                     -$                  -$                  -$                       -$                     -$                  -$                                        

Satisfied/Cancelled 0 0 0 0 -                    0 0 0 0

Amount -$                      -$                      -$                     -$                  -$                  -$                       -$                     -$                  -$                                        

*

 $         94,977.77 91,165.98$         85,475.57$        89,228.29$     70,231.90$     88,471.75$          91,033.26$        86,763.04$     602,369.79$                         

 -$                                        

Billed Current Yr -$                      -$                                        

Collected All Years 14,532.69$         28,278.01$         360,458.82$      79,282.71$     70,585.68$     204,641.79$       112,884.94$      42,147.49$     912,812.13$                         

Bad Checks -$                      -$                      -$                     -$                  -$                  -$                       -$                     -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                -$                  -$                                        

TOTAL 14,532.69$         28,278.01$         360,458.82$      79,282.71$     70,585.68$     204,641.79$       112,884.94$      42,147.49$     -$                  -$                  -$                -$                  912,812.13$                         

Billed Current Yr -$                      -$                      -$                     -$                  -$                  -$                       -$                     -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                -$                  -$                                        

Collected Current Yr 291.70$               -$                      259.16$              210.84$           265.30$           2,915.79$            1,037.97$          -$                  -$                  4,980.76$                              

TOTAL 291.70$               -$                      259.16$              210.84$           265.30$           2,915.79$            1,037.97$          -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                -$                  4,980.76$                              

Collected Current Yr 6,167.86$            12,381.04$         36,559.47$        10,230.76$     9,486.77$       64,140.63$          26,292.82$        944.88$           0 166,204.23$                         

Creswell Levy 349.86$               1,674.35$            24,831.41$        4,732.93$       741.70$           40,327.43$          6,814.78$          910.88$           80,383.34$                           

1,375,205.19$   814,269.87$      2,262,700.95$  571,354.54$  595,516.97$  2,559,548.44$   991,243.13$     256,480.38$  -$                  -$                  -$                -$                  9,426,319.47$                     

Albemarle Beach Solar, LLC I am in contact with Albemarle Beach Solar.  They have a buyer and the sell is expected to be finalized in March. All taxes will be paid at that time, per ABS. 

VL Group A, LLC The 2024 taxes are delinquent but we have had inquiry from the company for the delinquent balance. We are expecting payment in March. 

Plymouth Solar, LLC No payments received, however we are expecting payment in March. 

I am in contact with the same person who is handling the Albemarle Beach Solar, LLC payment plan for a status on the payments for VL Group, LLC and Plymouth Solar, LLC.  I have been told that with the sell of Albemarle Beach Solar we should receive payment for all.

Eddie Smith Drainage

Drainage Fees - Other

Town Collections

TOTAL TAX DEPOSIT

Tax and Tag Collections

Solid Waste Fees

Bank Attachments are usually in/out the same month - the bank either pays or sends a notice that no funds are available.

TAX

FY24-25

Collections

Advalorem Garnishments

Tax Fees

Current Yr Discount Current Year Penalty Current Year Interest Watershed Tax Current Yr Watershed Discount Watershed Penalty Watershed Interest Prepayments TOTAL



July Aug. Sept. Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June
YTD 

Totals

Water Billed FY 23-24  (in 

million gallons)
8.08 8.93 7 6.896 7.547 6.94 7.77 6.19 6.16 8.23 2.755 8.28 86

Water Billed  FY 24-25 (in 

million gallons)
9.51 6.91 6.97 7 6.85 7.56 8.85 8.03 30

Base Charges 71,439$      71,283$      71,361$      71,127$    71,217$   70,934$   70,916$   71,139$     569,416$        

Consumption Charges 81,120$      46,350$      47,445$      47,580$    45,855$   54,570$   73,935$   63,900$     460,755$        

Reconnecton Charges 1,890$        2,240$        2,170$        2,135$      1,470$      1,680$      1,785$      1,785$       15,155$          

 Number of Abatements 18 9 4 9 4 5 13 62                    

  Dollar Amount of 

Abatements 
2,408.50$  3,608$        413$           1,493$      186$         1,075$     2,830$     12,012.50$    

Water Pumped                       
(in million gallons)

16.4 15.9 14.14 13.16 12 13 16 13 113.680

Number of Customers 2682 2676 2679 2670 2673 2665 2667 2670 21,382

New taps 2 2 1 0 1 1 0 0 2

Water Billed to Roper 4,844.65$     4,844.65$     4,844.65$     4,844.65$   $4,844.65 $4,844.65 $4,844.65 4,844.65$   38,757.20$             

0

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

FY Water Consumption Comparison

Water Billed FY 23-24  (in million gallons) Water Billed  FY 24-25 (in million gallons)



July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June
YTD 

Totals

WC Dispatched 161 131 148 151 115 148 179 218

WC Transported 124 95 120 113 87 112 143 167 961

WC Refusals 37 36 28 34 30 36 36 51 288

Transport Washington

Hospital to Hospitals 0 1 0 1 0 0 1 0 3

SNF to Doctors 112 94 132 199 149 177 162 129 1154

Hospital Discharges 13 9 19 13 6 15 22 6 103

EMS Back Up 4 5 6 6 2 8 6 5 42

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June
YTD 

Totals

TC Dispatched 51 66 51 69 51 39 72 61 460

TC Transported 36 41 39 52 35 30 55 44 332

TC Refusals 15 25 12 15 16 9 17 17 126

Mutual Aid Hyde

HC Dispatched 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1

HC Transported 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1

HC Refusals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
                                                                

EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES (EMS)

FY24-25

Washington County

Tyrrell County

EMS Dispatches for FY24-25
(Washington, Tyrrell & Hyde Counties)



44%

13%

21%

16%

6%0%0%0%

EMS Dispatches for FY24-25
(Washington, Tyrrell & Hyde Counties)

WC Dispatched

WC Transported

WC Refusals

TC Dispatched

TC Transported

TC Refusals

HC Dispatched

HC Transported

HC Refusals



July Aug. Sept. Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June YTD 
Limbs, Brush & Leaves 62.41 42.11 90.43 67.89 53.79 47.32 42.05 59.86 72.73 538.59

Inert Debris 76.5 32.1 27.58 43.95 6.19 0.27 13.36 0 10.25 210.20

Scrap Metal 0.57 1.34 0.49 15.85 1.51 0.69 1.36 0.94 15.93 38.68

C&D 32.24 44.74 47.06 149.03 34.31 35.45 39.55 49.34 56.81 488.53

Tires 11.76 4.92 5.37 4.57 0.77 3.81 2.00 0.76 4.90 38.86

LANDFILL  (in tons)

FY 24-25

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

July Aug. Sept. Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June

Landfill Collections in Tons 

Limbs, Brush & Leaves Inert Debris Scrap Metal C&D Tires



July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June YTD Totals

Building $4,702.70 3,080.00$      1,960.40$   2,043.50$   1,240.60$   5,243.50$   5,688.80$   2,493.50$   3,142.80$   $29,595.80

Zoning 100.00$    200.00$       25.00$         50.00$         25.00$         100.00$       25.00$         75.00$         75.00$         $675.00

Reinspect 325.00$    100.00$       475.00$       725.00$       75.00$         -$             375.00$       375.00$       375.00$       $2,825.00

SWUF $175.00 145.84$       87.50$         -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             562.50$       -$             $970.84
HO Recovery 

Fee $10.00 -$             -$             10.00$         10.00$         10.00$         10.00$         10.00$         -$             -$             -$            $60.00

Total $5,312.70 $3,525.84 $2,547.90 $2,828.50 $1,350.60 $5,353.50 $6,098.80 $2,953.50 $4,155.30 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $34,126.64

PLANNING AND ZONING

FY24-25

Inspections and Fees

$0.00

$1,000.00

$2,000.00

$3,000.00

$4,000.00

$5,000.00

$6,000.00

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June

Planning and Zoning Fees Collected (FY24-25) 

Building Zoning Reinspect SWUF HO Recovery Fee

87%

2%
8%

3%0%

Fees Collected 
Percentages

Building Zoning

Reinspect SWUF

HO Recovery Fee



July Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Jan. Feb. March April May June YTD Total
YTD Total

Unduplicated Attendees 79 58 78 78 73 69 61 496
Total Guest Check-Ins 29 28 23 22 7 4 21 134
New Member Forms Submitted 8 1 5 2 1 2 19
Center-Sponsored Events 450 396 375 428 274 315 308 2546
Special Events 149 113 144 207 144 208 143 1108
Caregiver's Support Groups 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Exercise Room 64 57 62 59 50 54 62 408
Fitness Workout (ON HOLD) HOLD HOLD HOLD HOLD HOLD HOLD HOLD 0
Yoga 8 5 4 4 5 5 8 39
Chair Exercise 51 39 48 39 12 21 29 239
Line Dance 8 HOLD 24 18 9 4 27 90
Crafts With Sandra Lee 13 14 18 16 5 6 1 73
Drop-in Activities 16 25 34 27 56 20 25 203
Pickle Ball (ON HOLD) HOLD HOLD HOLD HOLD HOLD HOLD HOLD 0
Roper Classes 14 HOLD HOLD HOLD HOLD HOLD 14
Creswell Classes 10 HOLD HOLD HOLD HOLD HOLD 10

YTD Total
1003 987 989 1131 884 783 602 0 0 0 0 0 6379

Congregate Meals Served 244 237 279 294 231 208 1493
Home-Delivered Meals Served 759 750 710 837 653 575 602 4886

YTD Total
748.00$  2,754.58$  486.50$   100.00$  32.00$     55.00$    60.00$     385.00$   -$            -$            -$        -$     4,621.08$   

Congregate Donations to AC $69.00 $27.24 $72.50 168.74$       
MOW Donations to AC $550.00 $308.00 $205.00 1,063.00$   
Activity Fees to County GF 80.00$     55.00$         50.00$      80.00$     7.00$        30.00$    50.00$     45.00$      397.00$       
Senior Collected Donations 49.00$     2,364.34$  159.00$    20.00$     25.00$     25.00$    10.00$     340.00$   2,992.34$   

SENIOR CENTER
FY24-25



July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June
Total (by 

Gender)

Total 

Incacerations

50 52 67 56 67 51 53 40 0 0 0 0 436 436
Male 34 34 48 30 41 30 33 28 278

Female 8 8 8 10 11 8 8 6 67

Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 1 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 3

Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

8 10 10 15 15 13 11 6 88 88

Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
US PRISON TRANSPORT 

345

0

3

0

0

0

0

0

0

MARTIN

BEAUFORT

PITT

Northampton

SURRY

SMCP               Male

HYDE

DETENTION 
FY24-25

Incarcerations by County

WASHINGTON

CHOWAN

99%

0%1%0%0%0%0%0%0%

Incarcerations by County (Total FY24-25)

WASHINGTON

CHOWAN

HYDE

MARTIN

BEAUFORT

PITT

Northampton

SURRY

US PRISON TRANSPORT



JULY AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUNE
YTD 

TOTALS

Total  Number of Dispatched Calls 1105 998 1022 929 915 854 983 0 0 0 6806

Law Enforcement 853 755 776 676 728 679 706 5173
Animal Control 73 89 77 79 47 33 53 451

EMS 179 154 169 174 140 142 224 1182

Reported Incidents 31 10 41

Total Arrests 5 10 0 0 0 15

Misdemeanor Arrests 7 2 6 0 5 1 8 29

Felony Arrests 10 0 7 1 3 4 2 27

Total Papers Served 0 0 51 21 48 20 42 42 41 0 0 0 265

Criminal Papers Served 17 4 7 4 8 14 10 64

Civil Papers Served 34 17 41 16 34 28 31 201

Total Papers Outstanding 0 0 36 39 31 29 18 25 42 0 0  220

Criminal Papers Outstanding 7 19 6 8 1 9 7 57
Civil Papers Outstanding 29 20 25 21 17 16 35 163

Gun Permits Issued  N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 0

Conceals Pending  N/A 10 9 19

Concealed Permits Issued  N/A 0

SHERIFF

FY24-25

7%

17%

Dispatched Calls (FY24-25)

Law Enforcement

Animal Control

EMS



76%

EMS

200

250

201

163

Total Arrests & Papers Processed/Served (FY24 -25)



JULY AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUNE
YTD 

TOTALS

Total  Number of Dispatched Calls 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Plymouth Police Department 0

Public Works 0
EMS Calls in the Town of Plymouth 0

Plymouth Fire Department

SHERRIFF

FY24-25







 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:   10 
   
       DATE:     April 7, 2025 
 
ITEM:        Closed Session 
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 

A Closed Session has been scheduled pursuant to NCGS§143-318.11(a)(3)  
(attorney-client privilege) and NCGS §143-318.11(a)(6) (personnel). 

 



DRAFT 

 

                        
March 3, 2025 

 
 The Washington County Board of Commissioners met in a regular meeting on 
Monday, March 3, 2025, at 6:00 PM in the Multi-Purpose Room at Washington County 
Middle School, 37 E. Millpond Rd., Roper, NC.  Commissioners Ann C. Keyes, Carol V. 
Phelps, John C. Spruill and Julius Walker, Jr. were in attendance. Also, present were 
County Manager/ County Attorney Curtis S. Potter, Assistant County Manager, Jason 
Squires, Clerk to the Board Julie J. Bennett and County Finance Officer Missy Dixon. 
Commissioner Tracey A. Johnson was unable to attend tonight’s meeting. 
 
 Chair Phelps said it was nice to have the crowd here!  Welcome to our March 
meeting. 
 
 Chair Phelps called the meeting to order. Commissioner Keyes gave the 
invocation.  County Manager Potter led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
 ADDITIONS/DELETIONS:    
 
 CONSENT AGENDA: 

Items listed under Consent are generally of a routine nature.  The Board may take action to 
approve/disapprove all items in a single vote.  Any item may be withheld from a general action, to 
be discussed and voted upon separately at the discretion of the Board. 

 
a) Regular Session Minutes:  February 3, 2025 
b) Tax Refunds & Releases & Insolvent Account 
c) RESO 2025-002 Approving & Accepting Sale of Real Property, E. Fourth St., Plymouth 
d) Washington County dba Riverlight Transit Drug and Alcohol Testing Policy (Zero 

Tolerance – v.0623) 
e) Memo of Lease for Pre-K -12 Building 
f) County Fee Schedule Amendments (EMS) 

 
Commissioner Keyes made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda. 

Commissioner Spruill seconded; motion carried unanimously. 
 
PUBLIC FORUM:   No one signed up to speak. 
 
EMPLOYEE OF THE QUARTER:  Chair Phelps read the following that was 

submitted for the Employee of the Quarter for March 2025. 
 
“This Employee of the Quarter began her career with Washington County as a Tax 

Clerk in 2020. She was promoted to the Delinquent Tax Coordinator last year. 
 
However, due to staffing issues, she has also retained the duties of Tax Clerk. 

Every day she assists the taxpayers with payments, questions regarding real estate, 
personal property and motor vehicles. She is our main contact for NCVTS (motor 
vehicles). We receive phone calls from DMV offices for corrections to billings and she is 
always helpful to them. She also processes any adjustments for value appeals, situs errors 
or refunds due to tags being turned in before they expire. She is responsible for submitting 
reports to the Clerk for the Commissioners at their monthly meeting for refunds and 



DRAFT 

 

releases. In December, she assisted with posting the listing notices. She has stepped up and 
been willing to help wherever she is needed, without complaint. She is a valuable asset to 
the Tax Office and Washington County and has a very bright future here. She is cheerful 
and has a wonderful way of dealing with taxpayers. Due to her tireless effort and 
continued assistance, she deserves recognition as Employee of the Quarter.” 

 
 Chair Phelps asked everyone to join him in congratulating Ms. Christal Watkins as 

the March Employee of the Quarter. 
 
            DEPARTMENTAL INFORMATION UPDATE—SHERIFF’S OFFICE:  Chief 
Deputy Arlo Norman spoke to the Commissioners. He said law enforcement is different 
from 20 years ago. Law enforcement officers (LEO’s) have to earn each ounce of respect 
they are given.  It takes special people. Retainment is the hardest thing for the Sheriff’s 
Office. To be able to recruit you have to be competitive with other agencies. We need a 
good balance.  Sometimes it is better to have an open position than the wrong person in the 
position. LEO’s  used to have to have 640 BLET hours, now 800 hours are needed. Deputies 
have a wide range of duties.  The requirements have increased but the pay has stayed the 
same. Washington County currently has three (3) open slots.  The Sheriff’s Office is always 
training someone. Technology is a lot different now than years ago.  We have body cameras 
today. They have made complaints almost non-existent.  Dispatch:  A Communications 
Board has been developed and in operation for a few months.  It has helped with issues. 
Telecommunication Operators are required to have a lot of extensive training as well. We 
have to invest in them and hope we can keep them.  Detention:  There is a lot of repair work 
going on in Detention facilities. The Sheriff’s Office is working on hiring new staff that is 
needed. There are currently three (3) openings in Detention.  They also use four (4) part-
timers. Animal Control:  We have hired a brand-new Animal Control Officer who is from 
the Washington area.  He has no experience. Last year (2024) Animal Control had 776 calls. 
They also had two (2) volunteers to help at the shelter (but they do not go out on calls). 
Animal Control has 72 hours to figure out what to do with a stray animal, but we may keep 
them longer because we work with other shelters and citizens to adopt these animals out.   
Animal Control had a pop-up visit from the State on Feb 10. The Shelter is out of service 
presently to do some updates, repairs, and paint and seal all areas that animals come in 
contact with.  
 
 Commissioner Walker asked if Chief Deputy Norman was responsible for hiring in 
all of these departments.  He said for the most part, yes along with those Department Heads.  
 
 Commissioner Keyes knows the extent of what they do and the other entities (such 
as FD & EMS) that they work with.  Thank you for all you  do. 
 
 Commissioner Spruill thanked the Sheriff’s Office for all they do for our citizens and 
for having a presence in the community.  
  
 Chair Phelps agreed with all the Commissioners’ comments about the Sheriff’s 
Office. 
 
 SHERIFF’S INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT & STAFFING DISCUSSION:  Mr. 
Potter spoke to the Commissioners on this subject. He directed them to the items below that 
were in their Agenda Package. 



DRAFT 

 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 
 Commissioner Keyes stated that she has an issue with taking away their 2.5% COLA 
since they have worked all of this year.  Mr. Potter said with an average of 10% increase in 
salaries now, it would be difficult to explain to all other employees why LEO’s get an 



DRAFT 

 

additional 2.5% increase.  Commissioner Keyes said she supports all county staff but want 
all to be treated fairly. The Sheriff’s Office is ok with the plan as presented.   
 
 Commissioner Phelps felt that the Resolution should cover wear and tear on vehicles 
& equipment.  Mr. Potter said since this document is to be temporary, it was intentionally 
left out and is mentioned in the interlocal agreement. 
 

   Commissioner Keyes made a motion to approve the attached RESO 2025-003 
and the Interlocal Agreement as presented.  Commissioner Spruill seconded; motion 
carried unanimously. 

 
   Commissioner Spruill made a motion to approve the proposed modifications to 

compensation for the Sheriff’s Office as described in the Memo, effective 2/16/25 and 
direct staff to prepare a revised Salary Schedule in accordance therewith.  
Commissioner Walker seconded; motion carried unanimously. 
 
 CRESWELL VFD FUNDING REQUEST FOR TRAINING LOCATION:  Ron Ambrose, 
Chief Creswell VFD spoke to the Board on this item. See request below. 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 



DRAFT 

 

 
 
 

 
Commissioner Phelps asked where the funds for this request would come from.  Mr. 

Potter said the original request for the well was in the CIP but were not carried over for the last 



DRAFT 

 

two (2) years.  This is not currently in the budget; however, if approved, the Board would need to 
direct staff from where to get the funds.  Mr. Potter said $40,000 would need to be allocated  
from the fund balance.   
 
 Commissioner Keyes made a motion to approve the CFVD Funding Request for Training 
Location.  Commissioner Walker seconded; motion carried unanimously. 
 
 Commissioner Walker made a motion to direct staff to take $40,000 from the Fund 
Balance to fund the CFVD Funding Request for Training Location.  Commissioner Keyes 
seconded; motion carried unanimously. 
 
 CRESWELL VFD REQUEST FOR A LETTER OF SUPPORT FOR A USDA 
APPLICATION:  Mr. Ron Ambrose, Chief Creswell VFD spoke to the Board on this item. 
 

The Creswell Volunteer Fire Department application is to apply for up to  
$50,000.00 in grant funds, and the remaining loan of $400,000.00 (more or less depending on the 
grant award) from USDA for the purchase of a 2025 3,000-gallon tanker from Fouts Brothers, 
Inc. It was noted that the one penny of ad valorem taxes set aside by the Washington County 
Commissioners for upgrades to equipment and apparatus is being considered as a part  
of this payment. Currently, Creswell does not have another debt for apparatus.  Creswell VFD is 
asking the Commissioners for a letter of support to send in with the application. 
 
 Commissioner Keyes made a motion to approve the Creswell FVD Request for a Letter of 
Support for a USDA Application.  Commissioner Spruill seconded; motion carried unanimously. 
 

VACANT SCHOOL PROPERTIES UPDATE:  Mr. Kelly Chesson, Economic 
Development Director spoke to the Board and gave a presentation. 

 
 Mr. Chesson discussed the combined SWOT analysis for each department we are 

considering relocating to one of the vacant school properties. He has condensed the 
recommendations to be more concise, less redundant, and site specific. This information is 
below. 

 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
He stated that any feedback is greatly appreciated.  
 
He also discussed the need for a public hearing regarding what the County would like to 

do with these properties.  The consensus of the Board is to have the Public Hearing at the April 
7, 2025 Board of Commissioners’ Meeting. 

 
Commissioner Phelps asked about the HVAC at PHS.  Mr. Potter said the boiler would 

need to be completely replaced.  The are a lot of HVAC controls at WCMS—there are a lot of 
HVAC units.  He anticipates they would need to be replaced sooner than later.  Commissioner 
Phelps asked if we had any cost data.  Mr. Potter said yes for about the last 2 years.  WCMS’s 
cost is 80% less than PHS.  If WCMS is not used, it will have an impact on the Town of Roper.  
There is an  urgency with Elections due to the elections calendar.  They would need to move by 
May. Washington County Schools would take longer for renovations of Roper Annex for Early 
College to be ready next school year.     

 
Mr. Potter said staff would ask for a recommendation of which building(s) to use after the 

April public hearing.  Staff is leaning more towards WCMS.  We would need an architect to aid 
the County as we move along in the process.  Commissioner Phelps asked would we still be able 
to use the gym at PHS.  Mr. Potter said we should be able to but would propose to rewire the 
connections to make the gym an autonomous space.  It would not be feasible to have Heat & AC 
in the whole school.  
 
  BOARDS & COMMITTEES:  Ms. Julie J. Bennett, Clerk to the Board, spoke to the 
Board about the following. 
 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ADVISORY COUNCIL  
 

Ms. Bennett noted that at the last Board of Commissioners meeting, the Board discussed 
candidates for the newly formed Economic Development Advisory Council.  Staff was asked to 
develop an application for the members nominated to fill out and bring back to the March 



DRAFT 

 

meeting, which they did.  Those applications were in your agenda package for Dwight Respess, 
Harvey West, Maurice Hill, Mark Pardue and Rickecia James. 
 
 
JCP motion to approve all 5, AK seconded.  All a 

The Board may vote on these candidates if they please. 
 

Commissioner Spruill made a motion to appoint all  5 candidates (Dwight Respess, 
Harvey West. Maurice Hill, Mark Pardue and Rickecia James) to the Economic 
Development Advisory Council.  Commissioner  Keyes seconded; motion carried 
unanimously. 
 

FINANCE OFFICER’S REPORT:   Ms. Dixon went over the budget transfers and budget 
amendments that were in the Commissioners’ package.  Please see below. 

 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
Commissioner Keyes made a motion to approve the budget transfers/amendments 

as presented.  Commissioner Spruill seconded; motion carried unanimously. 
 

OTHER ITEMS BY COMMISSIONERS OR STAFF: 
 
Commissioner Keyes states she is chairing an NCACC virtual meeting. 
 
Commissioner Phelps asked for an update on the solar payment.  Mr. Potter said they 

have asked for various documents, but payments have stopped.   Commissioner Phelps said he 
attended the CRAC mtg.  It was interesting.  Does not affect us as much as our coastal neighbors 



DRAFT 

 

but good information to have.  Facilities Committee toured the jail facility with Mr. Potter and 
Mr. Squires. Chief Deputy Norman mentioned in his report that the inmates still need to have 
viable facilities.  He knows that Maintenance is working on some of their issues.  Commissioner 
Phelps said he knows we are working on a feasibility study with Chowan/Gates on a regional 
jail.  Mr. Potter said it is moving forward. 

 
Chair Phelps noted that the TTA voted to have Tom Harrison be their representative on 

the EDC. 
 
Mr. Potter passed out an Active Project List.  Mr. Squires went over this list. (see below). 

 
Mr. Potter handed out handed out a letter about himself that he has written as a letter of 

support to attend UNC-SOG PELA class. He will be applying for a scholarships and anticipates 
receiving both.  It is a two-week course.   

 
Commissioner Keyes made a motion for the County to cover any shortfall of funds 

for Mr. Potter’s PELA course. Commissioner Phelps seconded; motion carried 
unanimously.  

 
Mr. Potter said he plans to modify the part-time rate for paramedics.  We need to be more 

competitive.  The County is losing our EMS Assistant Director who was also a paramedic.  Due 
to staff shortages, we will be paying the EMS Director & Assistant Director at time and it is to be 
correctly noted on their timesheet. 
 
 Commissioner Keyes made a motion to go into Closed Session pursuant to NCGS§143-
318.11(a)(3) (attorney-client privilege) and NCGS §143-318.11(a)(6) (personnel).  Commissioner 
Spruill seconded; motion carried unanimously. 
 
 Commissioner Keyes made a motion to come out of Closed Session.  Commissioner Spruill 
seconded; motion carried unanimously. 

        
 Commissioner Spruill made a motion to adjourn. Commissioner Keyes seconded; motion 
carried unanimously. 
 
 

_____________________________     _______________________ 
             Julie J. Bennett, NCMCC, MMC         Carol V. Phelps 
                      Clerk to the Board                        Chair 



DRAFT 

 

                        
March 21, 2025 

 
 The Washington County Board of Commissioners met in a Special Called Meeting 
on Friday, March 21, 2025, at 2:00 PM in the Commissioners’ Room, 116 Adams Street, 
Plymouth, NC.  Commissioners Ann C. Keyes, Tracey A. Johnson, Carol V. Phelps, John 
C. Spruill and Julius Walker, Jr. were in attendance. Also, present were County Manager/ 
County Attorney Curtis S. Potter, Assistant County Manager, Jason Squires, Clerk to the 
Board Julie J. Bennett and County Finance Officer Missy Dixon.  
 
 Chair Phelps called the meeting to order.  
 
 EMTOC BIDS:  Mr. Jason Squires, ACM , spoke to the Board on the information 
below. He referenced the documents that were in their Agenda Package. 
 
 Mr. Potter mentioned the allocation of the following additional amounts would need to be added to 
the EMTOC project budget line 58-4203-001 (EM Bldg Local Match) to help facilitate the anticipated 
project costs to proceed with the construction of the EMTOC facility: 

 
a. $300,000 to be transferred from the EMS Fund Balance 
b. $700,000 to be transferred from the General Fund Balance 
 

 The County is trying to get our Senator and Representative to provide more funds to us for this 
building. If and until that funding comes through, we will pull money from the respective funds listed 
above. 
 
  Commissioner Spruill made a motion to approve the bid to A.R Chesson Construction and 
authorize the Board Chair, County Manager, and/or Finance Officer to negotiate, execute, and 
deliver a construction contract on behalf of Washington County using a Standard Form AIA 
contract template, subject to any modifications recommended by the County Attorney and 
approve the allocation of $1M as presented above. Commissioner Walker seconded; motion 
carried unanimously. 

 
AIRPORT OBSTRUCTION REMOVAL BIDS:   Mr. Curtis Potter, CM/CA spoke 

to the Board. 
 
Bids were received for vegetation and tree removal at the Airport to turn portions 

of land into mowable acreage.  
  

Commissioner Keyes made a motion to proceed to make the award to 
Sawyer’s Land Developing, Inc. and authorized the Board Chair, County Manager, 
and/or Finance Officer to negotiate, execute, and deliver a contract on behalf of 
Washington County.  Commissioner  Walker seconded.  Discussion ensued.  Motion 
carried unanimously. 
 

FINANCE OFFICER’S REPORT:   Ms. Dixon went over the budget transfers and budget 
amendments that were in the Commissioners’ package.  Please see below. 

 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 



DRAFT 

 

Commissioner Keyes made a motion to approve the budget transfers/amendments 
as presented.  Commissioner Spruill seconded; motion carried unanimously. 
 
 Commissioner Spruill made a motion to adjourn. Commissioner Keyes seconded; motion 
carried unanimously. 
 
 

_____________________________     _______________________ 
             Julie J. Bennett, NCMCC, MMC         Carol V. Phelps 
                      Clerk to the Board                        Chair 


	Cover page  for Commissioner booklets with window 6.4
	Agenda April 7, 2025
	4-7-2025 Item 1 Consent Agenda
	Tax Refunds & Insolvents (2)
	Proclamation 2025-004 Two Lights for Tomorrow
	Interlocal Agreement Regional Jail Study Apr 7, 2025
	Carol V. Phelps, Chair

	Washington County - 2025 Contract and Engagement Letter
	Leo correction summary
	Copy of FY24 Pay Tables Schedule eff 20250216 v20250311
	4-7-2025 Item 2 (public forum)
	4-7-2025 Item 3 Board of E&R
	4-7-2025 Item 4 Public Hearing - Vacant Schools-Dept. Reloc
	Department Relocation Presentation Summary
	Community Survey - Vacant Schools
	Community Survey Results - Vacant Schools
	4-7-2025 Item 5 Public Hearing--Zoning Ordinance -Corrider Comm. Dist. Amend
	Planning- recommendation 3-20-2025
	Planning-text amendment-CC 3-2025
	RESO 2025-005 approving Zoning Ordinance text amendment
	4-7-2025 Item 6 Public Hearing--Request for Change in Zoning Class
	Planning-Bethany Acres - rezone RA to CC
	4-7-2025 Item 7 Boards & Committees
	4-7-2025 Item 8 Finance Officer's Report
	Budget Amendments-Transfers
	4-7-25 Finance Report
	4-7-2025 Item 9 Other Items
	Reports for 4-7-2025 BoCC Meeting
	Safety Briefing
	Work Order Review
	Preventive Maintenance Schedule
	Project Updates
	Staffing and Training
	 Requesting a new position to help with the extra buildings we will be getting
	New Business
	 Mandated to install 7 backflow preventers

	Stat Report Cover Sheet
	FY24-25 Statistic Report (1)
	ROD Summary
	4-7-2025 Item 10 Closed Session
	3-3-2025 Minutes
	3-21-2025 Special Called Meeting



